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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE 
 

 

Dear Shareholders,  

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all on behalf of the esteemed members of the 
Board to the second (2nd) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway 
Limited (IrconBMEL). The Directors’ Report and the Audited Financial Statements for the year 
ended on 31st March, 2024, are already with you and with your kind permission, I take them 
as read. I would like to express my sincere gratitude for making it convenient for attending the 
AGM. 

I would like to place before you, few highlights of IrconBMEL. 

IrconBMEL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 18th February, 2022 and 
the concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 910 days from the 
appointed date and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation 
Date (COD). IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor in terms of technical bid 
submitted by IRCON to NHAI.  

As per Concession Agreement, the Bid Project Cost is Rs.1,436.00 crore plus GST (excluding 
escalation). The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during construction 
phase and balance 60% will be receivable after construction in the form of Annuity. The 
company will finance the cost of project by way of debt of Rs.823.39 crore & equity of 
Rs.205.85 crore. In respect of debt, Bank of Baroda (BOB) has sanctioned the term loan of 
Rs.823.39 crore. During the financial year, total equity of Rs.56.61 crore has been infused by 
Ircon International Limited.  

IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project work including 
O&M for five (05) years at EPC price of Rs.1,321.25 crores plus applicable GST. Presently, 
the construction activities at project has started from the appointed date of 19th January, 2023 
and the works are progressing on the available front.    

The Company has entered in to a facility agreement on 19th September, 2022 with Bank of 
Baroda (BOB) on for availing loan/ financial assistance of upto Rs.823.39 crore to finance the 
project for its execution and as at 31st March, 2024, the Company has availed a loan of 
Rs.129.37 crore.  
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Compliances and Disclosures 
 
Corporate Governance: Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules thereunder are being fully adhered to by your Company.  As per Office Memorandum 
dated 10th July 2014 and 11th July 2019 issued by Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), 
CPSEs constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance of the 
DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, these are not applicable on 
your company. 
 
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU): Your Company has requested IRCON to grant it 
exemption from compliance of Annual MoU exercise for the financial year 2024-25, in line with 
the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines issued by Department of Public 
Enterprises (DPE) dated 10th March, 2023 and IRCON vide its letters dated 21st March, 2024 
has granted exemption to the Company from compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the 
financial year 2024-25. 
 
Acknowledgements 
 
I, on behalf of Board of Directors, express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and 
co-operation extended to the Company by MoRTH, NHAI, Ircon International Limited, Auditors 
of the Company and all those who have supported and guided us during the year. I express 
my deep gratitude to employees for their dedication, intellect, hard work. And last, but not 
least, I would like to thank my colleagues on the Board for their guidance and continuous 
support. 
 
We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.  
 

 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

of Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited 
 

                                                        
                     Sd/- 

                                                             (Yogesh Kumar Misra) 
Chairman 

  DIN: 07654014 
Date: 2nd August, 2024 
Place: New Delhi 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

Dear Members, 
 

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 02nd Annual Report of Ircon Bhoj 
Morbe Expressway Limited (IrconBMEL) together with the Audited Financial Statements 
of the Company and Auditor’s Report for the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 
1. BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY’S 

AFFAIRS: 
 
IrconBMEL, a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON International Limited (IRCON) was 
incorporated on 06th January, 2022 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) with the main 
object to carry the business of Construction of Eight Lane Access Controlled Expressway 
from Km 69.800 to Km 79.783 (Bhoj to Morbe Section - SPUR of Vadodara Mumbai 
Expressway) (‘the Project’) in the State of Maharashtra under Bharatmala Pariyojana 
(Phase II – Pkg XVII) by National Highway Authority of India (NHAI).  
 
IrconBMEL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on 18th February, 2022 and 
the concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 910 days from the 
appointed date and operation period of 15 years commencing from Commercial Operation 
Date (COD). IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor in terms of technical bid 
submitted by IRCON to NHAI.  
 
As per Concession Agreement, the Bid Project Cost is Rs.1,436.00 crore plus GST 
(excluding escalation). The 40% of the project bid cost shall be reimbursed by NHAI during 
construction phase and balance 60% will be receivable after construction in the form of 
Annuity. The company will finance the cost of project by way of debt of Rs.823.39 crore & 
equity of Rs.205.85 crore. In respect of debt, Bank of Baroda (BOB) has sanctioned the 
term loan of Rs.823.39 crore. During the financial year, total equity of Rs.56.61 crore has 
been infused by Ircon International Limited.  
 
IRCON has been appointed as EPC Contractor for execution of the project work including 
O&M for five (05) years at EPC price of Rs.1,321.25 crore plus applicable GST. Presently, 
the construction activities at project has started from the appointed date of 19th January, 
2023 and the works are progressing on the available front.    
 
The Company has entered in to a facility agreement on 19th September, 2022 with Bank of 
Baroda (BOB) on for availing loan/ financial assistance of upto Rs.823.39 crore to finance 
the project for its execution and as at 31st March, 2024, the Company has availed a loan of 
Rs.129.37 crore.  

 
2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  

 
In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for 
the Financial Year 2023-24 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).  
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Financial performance indicators as on 31st March, 2024                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                     (Amount in ₹ Lakhs) 

 

S.No. Particulars 
For the Year 

ended 
31.03.2024 

For the period 
from 06.01.2022 

to 31.03.2023* 
1.  Equity Share Capital 520.00 5.00 

2.  
Other Equity (includes Reserves and 

Surplus) 
6212.87 672.38 

3.  Net Worth 6732.87 677.38 

4.  Borrowings (Long term) 12,937.00 - 

5.  Total Assets and Liabilities 34,909.27 3,136.45 
6.  Revenue from Operations 46,331.29 2,662.41 

7.  Other Income 3.03 - 

8.  Total Income (6) + (7) 46,334.32 2,662.41 
9.  Profit Before Tax  1,458.57 (0.05) 

10.  Profit/ (Loss) After Tax 1,091.48 (0.12) 

11.  

Earnings Per Equity Share  
(on face value of Rs.10/- per share) 
(i) Basic 
(ii) Diluted 

27.45 

27.45 

(0.24) 

(0.24) 

*The company is incorporated on 06th January, 2022 as wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon 
International Limited, hence corresponding figure of previous period are not provided. 
 

3. DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE: 
 

Your Company’s Project is under initial stage of construction, hence, there is no operational 
income/ profit, so your Company do not propose to carry any amount to the reserves for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024.  
 
In view of the status of the Project which is on the initial stages of construction, the Board of 
Directors have not recommended any dividend on the equity shares for the period under 
review. 
 

As per the applicability of Ind-AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the 
head “Other Equity‟ in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of 
Rs.1,071.36 lakhs in Retained Earnings as on 31st March, 2024.  
 

4. SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION: 
 

During the year, the Company has increased its Authorized Share Capital from Rs.5 lakhs 
to Rs.21 crore and Paid-up Share Capital from Rs.5 lakhs to Rs.5.20 crores.  
 
At the end of the FY 2023-24, the Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share Capital 
of the Company stands at Rs.21 Crores comprising of 2,10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- 
each and Rs.5.20 Crores comprising of 52,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 
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respectively. Ircon International Limited (IRCON) continues to hold 100% paid-up share 
capital of IrconBMEL. 
 
As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 dated 22nd January, 2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary 
(WoS) is not required to get its securities in dematerialized form. 

 
5. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT: 

 
The Company is having a negative Cash Flows from operating activities of Rs.17,215.35 
lakh for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 
6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 
For the period under review, there was no Subsidiary/ Joint Ventures/Associate Companies 
of the Company. 
 

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL: 
 

Board of Directors: 
 

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24 

During the year under review, the holding Company [IRCON] had nominated Mr. Yogesh 
Kumar Misra [having DIN:07654014], as the Chairman and Additional Part-time (Nominee) 
Director of your Company, vice Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma w.e.f. February, 01, 2024. who 
ceased to be the Director of your Company consequent to withdrawal of nomination by the 
holding Company [IRCON] w.e.f. January, 31, 2024. 

As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by 
the holding company, IRCON. 

During the FY2023-24, Company’s management is headed by the following Non-Executive 
(Nominee) Directors: - 

Category, Name & 
Designation 

DIN Appointment or Cessation (during the 
year, if any) 

Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, 
Chairman 

08556821 Ceased to be the Chairman and Part-time 
(Nominee) Director of the Company w.e.f. 
31st January 2024 

Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra, 
Chairman 

07654014 Appointed as Chairman and Additional 
Part-time (Nominee) Director w.e.f. 1st 
February, 2024 

Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director 09008553 - 

Mr. B. Mugunthan, Director 08517013 Regularized at 1st AGM of the Company 
held on 4th August, 2023 

Mr. Manoj Kumar 09766366 - 
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After closure of the financial year, the Holding Company, IRCON has nominated Ms. Yamini 
Sahib, GM (Finance-HQ), IRCON, (DIN:10686600) as Nominee Director w.e.f. 27th June 
2024. 
 
Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra and Ms. Yamini Sahib, Directors, were nominated by IRCON as 
Additional Part-time (Nominee) Directors of the Company w.e.f. 1st February 2024 and 27th 
June, 2024 respectively, who shall hold office upto the date of the Annual General Meeting. 
The Company has received a notices under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from 
Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra and Ms. Yamini Sahib giving their candidatures for appointment as 
Directors, liable to retire by rotation, in the Annual General Meeting (AGM). Their 
appointments as Directors by Shareholders is included in the notice of the AGM.   
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 152(6) the Companies Act, 2013 all Directors 
of the Company shall be liable to retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your 
Company. Mr. Masood Ahmad shall retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your 
Company and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors 
recommends his re-appointment as Director and his brief resume is annexed to the Notice 
of the Annual General Meeting. 
 
None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/ re-appointed as Director. 
 
Key Management Personnel (KMP): 
 
Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the 
Company has designated the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) as the Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMP) of the Company. The details of KMPs as at 31st March, 2024 are as 
follows: 

 
Key Personnel of 
Company 

Date of Appointment Date of Cessation Designation 

Mr. Sanjay Podder 27th June,  2023 - Chief Financial Officer 

 
After closure of the financial year, the Holding Company, IRCON has vide its HRM Office 
Order No. 393/2024 dated 18th June, 2024 has withdrawn the nomination of Mr. Sanjay 
Podder as CFO and KMP of the Company. Your Company is not required to appoint KMP 
under Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule-8 of Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 
8. Board Meetings: 

 

During the period under review, the Board met five (5) times on 12.05.2023, 21.06.2023 
01.08.2023, 02.11.2023 and 31.01.2024. The interval between the Board Meetings were 
within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The attendance detail of the 
Board Meetings is as follows: 
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Date of The Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors 
Present 

12.05.2023 4 4 

21.06.2023 4 4 

01.08.2023 4 4 

02.11.2023 4 4 

31.01.2024 4 3 
 

 The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held 
during the period under review: 

Name of 
Directors 

Meeting Date Total 
Board 
meetin
gs held 
during 
the 
tenure 

No. of 
Board 
meetin
gs 
attende
d 

% of 
attendan

ce in 
Board 

Meeting 

Whether 
attended 
last AGM 
held on 
04.08.2023 

12
.0

5.
20

23
 

21
.0

6.
20

23
 

01
.0

8.
20

23
 

02
.1

1.
20

23
 

31
.0

1.
20

24
 

Mr. Devendra 
Kumar Sharma 

     4 4 100  

Mr. B. 
Mugunthan  

     4 4 100  

Mr. Masood 
Ahmad 

     4 4 100  

Mr. Manoj 
Kumar 

    - 4 3 75  

Mr. Yogesh 
Kumar Misra 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA 

 
9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE: 
 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated 05th July, 2017 exempted an 
unlisted public company which are wholly-owned subsidiary from the requirement of 
appointing Independent Directors on its Board and constitution of Audit Committee and 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC). 

 
IrconBMEL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of 
IRCON, therefore, is not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the 
declaration by the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company. 
 
Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)’s Office Memorandum (OM) 
dated July 8-10, 2014, read with OM dated 11th July, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special 
Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on 
Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, Corporate Governance Guidelines of DPE are 
not applicable on IrconBMEL. 
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10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
 

  The Board of Directors of the Company confirms: 
 

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended  
31st March, 2024, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 
b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment 

and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2024 and of the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date; 

 
c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities; 

 
d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 

 
e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

 
11. DIRECTOR’S OBSERVATION AND COMMENT’S FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT: 
 
The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and 
need no further explanation.  
 
There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any 
clarification/ explanation. 

 
12. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 

 
M/s. Ahmad Shukla Jain & Associates, Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as 
Statutory Auditors, for the period from April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 by the Comptroller 
and Auditor General of India vide CAG letter No./CA.V/COY/Central Government, 
IRCBME(1)/332 dated 13th September 2023. M/s. Ahmad Shukla Jain & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants, have confirmed by way of a written consent and certificate as 
required under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
13. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS  
 

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for the period from April 
1, 2023 to March 31, 2024 with nil observation are attached separately as part of the 
Annual Report along with Non Review Certificate received from Comptroller & Auditor 
General (C&AG) of India for the period from April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024. 
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14. COST RECORDS 
 
Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) 
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, was not applicable to the Company during 
period under review. 
 

15. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 
The requirement of obtaining a Secretarial Audit Report under Section 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 from the practicing Company Secretary was not applicable to the 
Company during period under review. 
 

16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the during period under 
review. 
 

17. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 
 

During period under review, the related party transactions with the holding company, IRCON 
were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved in terms 
of the Companies Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form AOC-2 are 
enclosed to this report as Annexure – A. 
 

18. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 

 
No material changes and commitments have occurred which affect the financial position of 
the Company between the end of the financial year and the date of this report except as 
mentioned in this Annual Report. 
 

19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 
The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder: 
 

A. Conservation of energy: - 
 

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of 
particulars is not applicable to the Company. 

 
B. Technology absorption: - 

 
Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of 
particulars is not applicable to the Company. 
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C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: - 
 
There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the period 
under review. 
 

20. RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/ risk 
to the business of the Company. 

 
21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 

 
The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company during the period under review. 
 

22. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 
 
As per Notification dated 05th June, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.  

 
IrconBMEL, being a Government Company is not required to disclose information on the 
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as a 
part of the Directors' Report. 
 

23. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
 
There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the period under 
review. 
 

24. PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 
 
During the period under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its 
members pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 
25. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

 
The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the 
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Indian Accounting Standards for 
properly maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your 
Company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures 
commensurate with its size and nature of its business. 
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26. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE 

 
No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern 
status of the Company and its operations in future during the period under review. 
 

27. COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE 
PREFERNCE POLICY 
 
In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies 
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than Rs.500 crores and 
all CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables 
Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of 
India. The Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to 
monitor the compliance of such instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises, 
Government of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such 
instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance with the above instruction, the Company has 
boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. 15th July, 2023, to facilitate the financing of trade 
receivables of MSEs by discounting of their receivables and realisation of their payment 
before the due date. 

28. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

  
The Company being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable 
on the Company and the Internal Committee of IRCON deals with all the matters under the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013. 
 
During the period under review, there was no incidence where any complaint relating to 
sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women 
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 

29. VIGIL MECHANISM: 
 
The Company has established a mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns 
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Code. It also 
provides for adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees who avail the 
mechanism. Being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, for employees nominated and 
deputed from IRCON, the Whistle Blower Policy of IRCON is applicable, which is available 
on the website at , https://www.ircon.org/images/file/cosecy/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf. 
 
For other persons in employment of the Company, complaint/ reporting under Vigil 
Mechanism, can be addressed to: 
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Shri Masood Ahmad, Director 
Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited (IrconBMEL) 
Address: Ircon International Limited, 
C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017 
Phone No.: +91 -9560595062, Email id: masood.ahmad@ircon.org 
 

30. RIGHT TO INFORMATION: 
 
No application under Right to Information Act, 2005 was received by your company during 
the period under review. 
 

31. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:  
 
Pursuant to the notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 5th June 2015, sub-
sections (2), (3) & (4) of Sec. 178 regarding the performance evaluation shall not apply to 
Directors of Government Company. 

 

Being a Government Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited, 
all part-time Directors are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The evaluation of 
these nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined criteria in line 
with the guidelines of the Government of India. Hence, performance evaluation of Directors 
is not applicable on your company. 

 
32. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  
 

During the period, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).  
 

 

33. APPLICATION/ PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY 
CODE, 2016 
 
There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency & 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company. 
 

 

34. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU): 
 

Pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) Guidelines 
dated 10th March, 2023 of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE), Companies, that are 
subsidiary company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MOU with its holding company and holding 
company is free to take a decision regarding exemption from MoU for its subsidiary 
companies and process of exemption shall ordinarily be completed by 31st of March of the 
base year.  
 
Your Company, incorporated as wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON (holding company) and 
Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), will sign Annual MoU with IRCON. 
 

10.  

During the period under review, your Company requested IRCON to grant it exemption from 
compliance of Annual MOU exercise for the FY 2024-25, in line with the MOU Guidelines 
and IRCON vide its letter dated 21st March, 2024 has granted exemption to the Company. 
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We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport & Highways (MORTH)/ 
National Highway Authority of India (NHAI), various other Government Agencies, Banks, 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India (CA&G) and Statutory Auditors, for their support, and 
look forward to their continued support in the future. 
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

of Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited 
 

                                                        
 

                  Sd/- 
                                                                (Yogesh Kumar Misra) 

Chairman 
DIN:07654014 

Date: 2nd August, 2024 
Place: New Delhi 
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ANNEXURE -A 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 
Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso 
thereto during the period from 01st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024 

 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as follows 

 

Note: Apart from above said transactions, IRCON (holding company) has deputed its employee i.e., Chief 
Operating Officer (COO) and Chief Financial Officer to IrconBMEL and the salary, benefits (like PF, GIS, 
Society deduction, related payments, etc.) and other miscellaneous payment in nature of travelling/ ticket 
cost etc. paid to such deputed employees as per IRCON’s policy are reimbursed on actual cost basis.  

 
 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 
of Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited 

 
                                                        Sd/- 

                                                                (Yogesh Kumar Misra) 
Chairman 

DIN: 07654014 
Date: 2nd August, 2024 
Place: New Delhi 

Sr. 
No. 

Nature of contracts or 
arrangements or transactions 

Duration of 
the contracts 
or 
arrangements 
or 
transactions 

Salient terms of 
the Contracts or 
Arrangements or 
Transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

Date(s) of 
approval 
by the 
Board, if 
any: 

Amount 
paid as 
advances, 
if any: 

1.  

EPC Agreement  
(For Appointing Ircon International 
Limited as EPC Contractor for 
construction, maintenance and 
management of Eight lane access 
controlled Expressway from Km 
69.800 to Km 79.783 (Bhoj to 
Morbe Section – Spur of 
Vadodara Mumbai Expressway) in 
the State of Maharashtra on EPC 
mode under Bharatmala Pariyojna 
(Phase II - Package XVII). 

910 days  from 
the appointed 
date and 5 
year O&M 
Period 

Agreement dated 
11th August, 2022. 
 
The Contract has 
been awarded to 
IRCON for a 
consideration of 
Rs.1,321.25 crore 
Plus GST. 

(a)  
 

22nd July, 
2022 - 

2.  
Lease Agreement   
(To take on lease the Office 
Premises of IRCON) 

Two Years  
(01.04.2023 to 
31.03.2025) 

Lease Agreement 
executed on 5th 
April, 2023 for 
rent @ 
Rs.23,359/- p.m. 
plus GST 

22nd 
March, 
2022 

NIL  
(as on 
Date) 

A
O

C
-2
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AHMAD SHUKLA JAIN & ASSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 
TO THE MEMBERS OF IRCON BHOJ MORBE EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of 
IRCON BHOJ MORBE EXPRESSWAY LIMITED (the "Company"), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity 
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements, including material accounting policy 
information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 
"Standalone Ind As financial statements") .. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements 
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (lithe Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards('lnd As') prescribed under section 133 of the Act read 
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2024 , and its profit (including other comprehensive 
income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
standalone I nd AS financial statements. 

Office: lind Floor, 926, Gali No.1, Naiwala, Karol 8agh, New Delhi-110005 Tel: 011-4508-7156 
Mobile: 98101-21215, 99712-96596 email: ahmedfca@gmail.com www.caahmad.com 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of 
most significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the 
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined that there are no Key Audit Matters to communicate in our 
report. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Company's annual report but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the 
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements; our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to 
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Standalone Financial Statements 
The accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements have been approved 
by the Company's Board of Directors. The Company's Board of Directors is 
responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(lithe Act") with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income , changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (I ndian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,as amended from time to time. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
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records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, Board of Directors is 
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's 
financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opInion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 
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Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors' use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern . 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
standalone I nd AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 
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2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reportthat: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been 
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those 
books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), and the Cash Flow Statement and the 
Statement of Change in Equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply 
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014. 

e. Being a government company, provision of section 164(2) of the Act are 
not applicable pursuant to the notification No. G.S.R.463(E) dated 5th 
June 2015, issued by the Central Government of India. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls ' over 
financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of 
such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 8". 

g. Being a government company, provision of section 197 of the Act are 
not applicable vide notification no. , GSR 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015, 
issued by the Central Government of India. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report 
in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would 
have a material impact on its financial position. 

ii. Based on the assessment made by the Company, there are no 
material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts that may 
require any provisioning. The Company did not have any derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
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iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person 
or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has 
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The Company has not proposed, declared or paid any final or 
interim dividend during the period and until the date of this report, 
therefore, the reporting under clause is not applicable. 

vi. (a) Based on our examination which included test checks, the 
Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books 
of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has 
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same 
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the accounting software. Further, during the course of 
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail 
feature being tampered with. 
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(b) As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 is applicable from April1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on 
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for 
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 
March31,2024. 

3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India, we report that: 

S.No 
1. 

2. 

3. 

Directions 
Whether the company has 
system in place to process all the 
accounting transactions through 
IT system? If yes, the implications 
of processing of accounting 
transactions outside IT system on 
the Integrity of the accounts along 
with the financial implications, if 
any, may be stated. 

Whether there is any 
restructuring of an existing loan 
or cases of waiver/write off of 
debts/loans/interest etc. made by 
a lender to the company due to 
the company's inability to repay 
the loan? If yes, the financial 
impact may be stated. Whether 
such cases are properly 
accounted for? (In case, lender is 
a Government company, then this 
direction is also applicable for 
statutory auditor of lender 
company). 

Whether funds (grants/subsidy 
etc.) received/receivable for 
specific schemes from 
Central/State Government or its 

Auditor's Replies 
The Company has SAP 
system to process all the 
accounting transactions 
and used for preparation 
of the financial accounts. 

Based on the audit 
procedures carried out 
and as per the 
information and 
explanations given to us 
,there is no accounting 
transaction processed 
outside IT System for 
which no financial 
implication. were 
observed. 
No, Company is having 
no case of any 
restructuring of an 
existing loan or cases of 
waiver/write off of 
debts/loans/interest etc. 
made by a lender to the 
company due to the 
company's inability to 
repay the loan. 

According to the 
information and 
explanation given to 
us and as per our 
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Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15-05-2024 

agencies were properly examination of 
accounted for/utilized as per its records, no funds 
term and conditions? 
cases of deviation 

List the have been 
received/receivable 
for any specific 
scheme from 
Central/State 
Government or its 
agencies during the 
financial year 2023-
24. 

For Ahmad Shukla Jain & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Fi~05583N 

CA Tanveer Ahmad 
(Partner) 
Membership No: 523922 
UDIN:24523922BKCPXX6227 
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ANNEXURE 'A' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements' section of our report to the Members of IRCON SHOJ MORSE 
EXPRESSWA Y LIMITED of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the 
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of 
audit, we state that: 

I. (a) The Company does not have any Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), intangible 
assets or immovable property, hence reporting under clause 3 (i) (a) to (e) of the 
order is not applicable. 

II. (a) The Company does not have any inventory, hence reporting under clause 3 
(ii) (a) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits, in excess of 
Rs 5 Crores, in aggregate at any point of time during the year, from banks or 
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets, hence reporting 
under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

III. The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security .. or 
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to 
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and any other parties,during the 
year, hence reporting under clause 3(iii) (a), (b), (c), (d) and ( e) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

IV. The Company has not granted loan, made investment, and provided guarantee and 
security, hence clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

V. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits, hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

VI. According to the information and explanation given to us the Company do not require 
to maintain cost records pursuant to the companies (Cost Accounting Records and 
Audit) Rules 2011 as amended prescribed by the Central Govt. under the 
provisions of section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

VII. In respect of statutory dues: 

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of 
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory 
dues applicable with the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, 
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Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of 
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues in 
arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the 
date they became payable. . 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, and as per 
examination of records of the Company, there is no amount payable in respect 
of Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, 
Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value 
Added Tax, Cess, which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2024 on 
account of any dispute. 

VIII. According to the information and explanations given to us , No transactions were 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act , 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in 
the books of accounts. 

IX. A) In respect of loans and borrowings taken by the Company, based on our review 
of accounts and as per information provided , the Company has not defaulted in 
payment of loans or other borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon during 
the year under audit. 

B) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or any other lender. 

C) Term loans received by the Company were applied for the purpose for which 
the loans were obtained. 

D) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds 
raised by the Company on short term basis have not been utilised for long term 
purposes. 

E) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the 
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 
meet the obl igations of its Associates. 

F) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in associates, · hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

X. A) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during the period and hence reporting 
under clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not applicable. 
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B) During the period, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or 
optionally), hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the. Order is not applicable. 

XI. (a) According to information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the Company 
and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed by the Auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year 
and upto the date of this report. 

(c) No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and upto 
the date of this report), 

XII. The Company is not a Nidhi Company, hence reporting under clause (xii) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

XIII. in our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related 
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

XIV. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not 
require to have an internal audit system for the year as per the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Hence, reporting under clause (xiv) (a) and (b) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

XV. According to the information and explanation given to us, in our opinion during the 
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its 
Directors or persons connected with its directors, hence provisions of section 192 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

XVI. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, hence reporting under clause 3(xvi) (a) 
and (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information provided and explanation given in our opinion, the 
Company is not engaged in the business which attracts the requirement of 
registration of the Company as Core Investment Company and further, there is no 
Core Investment Company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment 
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016), hence reporting under clause 
3(xvi) (c) and (d) of the Order are not applicable 

XVII. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the year covered by our audit 
and in the immediately preceding financial year. 
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XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the 
year. 

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us 
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report 
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date 
of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company. We furtherstate that our reporting is based on the 
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

XX. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on our examination of the records of the company 
t here is no amount remaining unspent under sub section (5) of section 135 of the said 
Act. 

XXI. The Company is not required to prepare the consolidated financial statements, 
hence reporting under clause (xxi) of the Order is not applicable. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15-05-2024 

r 

For Ahmad Shukla Jain & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Fi~.005583N 

CA Tanveer Ahmad 
(Partner) 
Membership No: 523922 
UDIN :24523922BKCPXX6227 
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Annexure B" to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial 
Statements of Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited for the period ended 31 st March, 
2024 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of 
Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended 31 51 March 2024. . 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)". These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of. the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial with reference to financial statements included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to 
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financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

(i) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(ii) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
of the company; and 

(iii) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, "based on the internal 
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India". 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 15-05-2024 

,. 
For Ahmad Shukla Jain & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No: · 05583N 

CA Tanveer Ahmad 
(Partner) 
Membership No: 523922 
UDIN :24523922BKCPXX6227 
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2 

II. 

l 

] 

Ireo n Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited 
eI N:· U4520JDLl022G0J392148 
n~luce Shcel IS al J h ll\1 ucb 2024 
"All (J""'W"I/n 1",IIIm n"pus /.aAIu un/dS OlM"'#~ Jsar~dJ 

Parliu ll.r5 

ASSETS 
Non-Cu rrcDI Ancu 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 

(b) Deferred Tax Assets (nct) 
(e) Financial Assets 

(i) OIlier Financial AsSels 

(d) Olhcr Non..current Assets 
TOII. I Noa-Currut ASSl: IS 

C. rrCIII USC-IS 

(a) Financial Assel~ 
( i) Trade Receivables 

(ii) Cash and Cash EquivalenlS 
(iii) Loans 

(iv) OIlier Financial AS:>eIS 
(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 

(c) Other CU~I Assets 

Tota l Cur re nt Asscu 
TOTAL As..'I£l'S 

E.QUITY AND LIABILITI ES 

Eq uity 
(a) Equity Share Capital 

(b) Otller Equity 
Tola l Equity 
Liabili li .. s 
INnn.C.rrtall.i ~ bjli t iU 
I (a) Fi ... anciall.i~bi!illes 

I (i) l}orro .... mgs 
1 (ii) I.ease Liabilities 

I ( iii ) Trade Pavabll:S 
- total Gutstllnd ing due~ ofmlCrQ enterprises and snul] enterprises 
- lotal outstanding d~s of eredllOrS OIher thM of micro enterprises and 

small enterprises 

Total No.-CurrUI Liabi litieJ 

ICurrut Lialiilit ies 
(a) Financial L iabil itie~ . 

I 
(il Lease Liabilities 
(ii) Trade Payables 
• total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 

I ,tolal outstanding dues of eredliOfS other th.an of micro enterprises and 
I small emerprl5e:S 

(iii) Other FinallCial liabili ties 
(ti) Och<-, CUlTcnt L~bititi~s 

(c) Currenl Tax Liabilities (Net) 
T otal CurreDt Lia bilitiu 
TOTAL £QUITY AND LlA UILITIES 
S umm .. ry of ndl.n al "((aunlln, po llC~ 

The a«ompanying DOl." I. ..., an Inlqnol p~r1 ol,b., finandlt "Itt_nls. 

Notc 
As al 

Jhl Martll, 2024 

2 · , om 

· 
· 

O.OJ 

4 

4.1 6,4"13.95 
4 .2 458.03 

· 
43 21,9.S3.48 , 217.29 

6 5,806.49 
~,9Q9.24 

34,909.21 

7 520.00 

• 6,212.87 
6,1J2.87 

9 12,937.00 

· 

-
-

12,9J7.oo 

-
10 

10.1 018 

10.1 12,225.59 

10.2 408.64 

" l,604 .99 

12 -
15,239.40 

14,909.27 

2 ,oJ7 

lreon Sho' 

0..-,--', ,/"-~ ~ -,.;",":fc" .. = 
'! Podd .. r Oi...,dor 
CFO (D1N:-08SI70 tJ) 

I'lace: ,~.w Odhl 

()~I. : IS-O.s~lC>.2.'t 

Asal 
Jist MardI, 202J 

· 
ON 

· 
· 

0.04 

· 
4.86 

· 
1.662.41 

· 
469 14 

J ,1J6.4 1 
J,136.45 

5.00 ' 
672.38 
677.J8 

· 
-
-

-
-

-
J.().l 

2, 176. 15 

100.34 
79. j~ 

-
2,-159.07 

J,1J6A5 



32

IrcOIl 8 hoj Morbe Exp ressway Lim ited 
CIN:- U45203DL2022GOI392148 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended Jist i\'1wrch 2024 
(All "ltWutI/$ '" 1""1('" l/uPU$ LaJdu u,,/en 1Xh;:,....,Je JIO(~d 

" artieula rs 

Income 

Revenue from operations 
Other income 
Tota ll ncome. (A ) 

.: J penses 

Project ExpcnSd: 
Employee benefits expenses 
Finance Costs 

Depreciation and amortm.!iOll expenses 
Other expenses 
Total expenscs (1,1) 

l'rofi t/(Loss) before I I)" (A· U) 
Tn n pr nsu 
Current lax 

Deferred tax (net) 

"rofi tJ(Lou) for the period 

O lher comprthr nSi\'c incomef(loss) 
A) Items that will nol be reclassified 10 profit or loss 

Income tax relating 10 Items lhal will not be reclassified 10 profil or loss 
Il) [Iems that will be reclassi rled 10 profit or loss 

[ncorne ta.x relaling 10 ltcm~ Ihal will be reclassified 10 profil or [OS!! 
Ot hrr comp~ehens i ,,~ incomel(lou) fo r the period (nel of Ill) 
Tota l Comprche llsivr illcornef{loss) For the period ' 

Earnings per equity share (Fl ee Vi lur Per t:q uily Shire lb. 10) 
Un i t 

Diluted 

S nllllllu ry or maten al aceOUnll nl!. p.o llc.t$ 
T he aCCO IDllan)'inR notes arc a n intC"ll.ra l part or the finJln dal stalemtnts. 

As per our report of ewn date 
For Ahmad Shukla J ai ~ & Associates 
l e A 1 Firm RC2is tra fion No. : 00558Jr,' 
C ha rUrcd AccountnnlS •. , " 

;'( ,--) '. 
CA Tan\'ec:r Ahmad ~F\ .. 
Partner ' -\~: 
ICA I Membership No 523922 ("l 11 '""1.... 
UDIN' '4,,-~ ~ '-"-ilK <:-~ X -S'l-- r 

I' lace: Ne .. · Do: thi 
Date: \ r-_(I S" .... 'l..? 'l.. ~ 

Notr 

IJ 

" 

L5 
16 
17 

18 

J 

21 

Z to J7 

For th r period from 061h 
~-o r the yur ended For the yur cnded J anuny 2022 (I}~ te of 

3 1st " larch 2024 Ji st M~rch 2024 incorporation) to 3 1st 
March 2023 

46,331.29 4,63,31,29,297.54 2.662.4 1 
3.03 3,02.963.00 -

46,334.32 4,63,34.32.260.54 2.662.41 

43,977.92 4,J9,77,92,549.66 2.602.77 

81AI 81 ,41.657.04 27.72 

238.39 2,38.38,788.54 -
- - -

578.03 5,78,02.564.16 )1.97 

44.875.75 4.48.75,75.559.40 2,662.46 

1,458.57 14,58,56,70 1.14 (0.05) 

367.08 3,67,07,960.00 0.11 

0.01 1.258.40 (0.04) 

367.09 3.67,09,218.40 0.07 

1.091."11 10.9 1.47.482.74 (0. 12) 

- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -

1,091.48 10.91 .47,482.74 (0. 12) 

17.4S 27.45 (0.24) 

27.45 27.45 (0.24) 
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Ircon Bhoj Morbc Expresswny Limited 
C IN:· U45203DL2012GO I392 148 
Statement of cha nges in equity for the year ended 31st Ma rch 2024 
(A" amQlmlS in Indian Rupees Laklu IInless otherwise staled) 

(.) E ::.qUlty Sh m c apila l 
Particulars Amount 
Balance as ,at 06th Janu ary, 2012 -
Changes in equity share capital during the year 5.00 

Balance as at 31st Ma rch, 2023 5.00 
Balance as at Olst April, 2023 5.00 

Changes in equity share capital during the year 515.00 

Balance as at 31st March 2024 520.00 

(b) Oth E er I'..Qu lty 
Particulars 

Reserves & Surplus 

Retained Earnin 'S 

Oalance as at 06th January, 2022 -
Profit for the year (0. 12) 
Other Comprehens ive income -
Total Comprehensive lncome ror the period (0. 12) 
Addition in Deemed Equity Equity -
Balance as at March 3 1, 2023 (0.12 

Oalanee as at Olst Ap ril 2023 (0.12) 
Total profit for the period \ ~091.47 

Other comprehensive income for the period -
Total comprehensive incom e for the period 1,091.47 
Share issue expenses (19.99) 
Addit ion in Deemed Equity Equiry -
Balance as at March 31,2024 1,07 1.36 .. 
Su mmary of material accountmg Iloilcies 
T he accompa nying notes are 3n Integral part of tbe financial statements. 

As per our report of even datc 
For Ahmad Shukla Jain &. Associales 
ICAI Finu Reeislration No.: 005S83N 
Chartered Accoun ta nts. //.:~8\ 
~~ ~ 'I 
~ -:- "!J: BtL 

CA Tanvecr Ahmad 9.""" ~ 
~rJ Attrfo'l.' Partner 

ICAI Mcmbersh ip No. : 523922 
UDIN 24 S'~3.!! '-'-~}< L P)()( 6 2.')..').-

Place: New Delhi 
Date: IS-OS"- 20~ 

~' ~ 
s.· pod~~r 
CF 

Other 
Deemed Equity 

Comprehensive Total 
Incom e 

eq uity 

- - -
- - (0. 12) 
- - -
- - (0.12) 
- 672.50 672.50 

- 672.50 672.38 

- 672.50 672.38 
- - \,091.47 
- - -
- - 1,091.47 

- (19.99) 
. 4,469.00 4,469.00 

- 5,141.50 6,212.86 

2 to 37 

For $lnd On behalf or Ihl! Ilou rd of Directors 

Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway 

8~ 
Di rector 

(DlN:..(I85170 13) 

Mas mad 
Di edor 

( l)1N:. 9008553) 
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I~ II>< cvnI of loquidauon of tho C""'I*'Y . .............. 01' "'I~'I)' IoIoora ";11 bt .... "'«1 '" , ___ ,.'OS ...... oI'tho C_. _ d"";buI"", of all ~uaI _ "The d .... ~ ";11 
btin P'~"'IM.-nbu of_I)' ....... heldb)l .... _cIIoIdon 
, ,;;) Di .. _ 

The d,,,,,,md prOfIOICd b)' the Uoord ",o.,«ton os w""'" '" .... _va! "' .... oIwdIoI<I<n ," ..... 'n' """ .. 1 ae-.I M"",n&, 

• 

" 

, 

, 
, , , , , 

101 FOf .... pot,od ofprK<><d,., r,,,, __ ........ Ba~ <hoe! .we, 
1.1 Shara bou~ *Ie Nil 
(iljSl\arefolloaod • .r .. Uypaod ... by _01'""", .. -.. Nil 
("jShu .......... ""«>M><I<nI,"" ............ casI< Iii! 

lIOd I" .. 

if) N.~_~: 
R<t._ bmi"C. 
Rru inod Eatn,nll' rtj><eSen" 'he u"",,,n ... ,,,,, profi n orl~ Com,..ny 
Own, [~. i'y 

~ ~ " ,,- ''''' 

, , 

, " 

, 
%~. 

- '00% 

~, Equ!!), ,_ oqu,lY <O,\lnl>o.o<"'" ftoon .... 11okI,"3 C"",PfJ\Y '" fonn of ItIltf<Ot h. '- TIl< Compo"y docs _ "'~""'Y ' .... rm«>I obli ... ""' ..... are oIefo ........ "1:quity" '" .... """"""iOfl,,_ ... ,m :<'11A1. A«<lfduog!y. _ ... """,Ida"" 10 bt '" ...... ,"'" of oqu1f)' ' .............. 
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I",on BhQj Mor~ .:'prrss ..... y Lim j!~ 

CIN:· U~~IOJOU012GOIJ'll l~S 
~ ...... f .. _al .... _" ....... , ••• _JI_." .... ltU IAIt_ .. __ ~_ .. -..~ 

" 

" 

'" II:. 

r' '';':''''<1 F.""" ,u. o:no.Itd r •• ""'I' . ........ d F.,. .... po.-lo<l f .... e<>,h 
lUI ~h ... h 2024 llUM.n:h20U Jon". t')' :012 (D", of 

.... . po ........ ) .olh. 
M ... ~ lOU 

W~_ 

~l.I)141 4,)'.) 1.41,S6J 66 :,Sl-499 
~,o... T<d"ncall"vaIjplo""" Sutv<)' Exp. Etc 1464~ 1,46,4).9UOO 1771 

Totar ~1.97J.'1 U'),J7.'I~ • .u 2.6(11.17 

r",o>io: ~ .... ,.rtkuI .... r .. tt>ty ••• _ r .. . "" yo" ..... «1 Fo"1>< p<.-Io<I r..,.. \16th 

11"~"l'<h:Ol~ lUi Much :014 J ...... 'Y lG11 (n.«.f 
i ... ...,.....ioo l .oJI" 

M ... ~ lOB 

Sa1aty 6: WIIU 6701 67,01.69) 22 .110 
Contriltu""" II> _, ond ather FIODdo ". 4,S',lS2 '" Rer""" .. " !k.>ef,,, 9." 9,11,712 n. 
To .. ! l UI 81",,61l1.G-1 21.71 , _1" ..... 
~ •• ,... 10'" " S I' ... ["P'01«' _,,:.n.. ~ '" Ir_ BhOj M<trl>o &pres._, Lin,,"'" ore pooled "" """"no"""It«".d ....... Iou" hom Iro>I'I 
1 ........ 'tONll..o"'j'«I (1IoId'"1 Company. 

In 'emt' Qrocooonlt"j policy of", Comf'l"y.1I(! >mon .. ""n, ",nh ,o. HoId, "S C"",,,,"y, '" PI"" ;""" fur R.",.Me<I' &ne~lS • ..ch .. ",<>Viden' lUnd. """.i<>n, ,,",u''Y,]><t01 
reti'emen, medoool bencf,1S, L .. .,..,. on.! ather '.m"naJ bonefil' oI ... ,.,,, .... td ~"be.", ma<I<.". ~, .. company 'n ...... oIlnd AS.-19 n.. ......... , !'O,d Of ~ 
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Pr_FIII!dCmu'''''''_oILhc~on __ ''''',_~'''''''teploflJ'dq>os''''''byLhcIlol<l;''3"""""",,''''[h ... PFTfUSI 

17 fi C ,n.,," . , 
r.n;.:"' . ... r .r ,Ny ... tndtd r. ..... y .... nd<d ,' •• 'he p<nod r .... 06,h 
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Ireon Hhoj Morbe Expressway Limited 
CIN:- U4520JDU022G01392148 
NOles 10 finandal slal t mt nLs for lht yur end t d Ji st lola~h 2024 
(All amounts in Ind'an R~p«S Laths unles! otherni~ ~ta!ed) 

19 Disclosure as pcr Ind AS 21 'The Effee15 of Changes in Foreign ~xcha nge Rales' 
The amount of exchange differences (net) credited/debited to thc statemenl of profi t and loss is Nil (Previous Period: Nil). 

20 Related Parly Oisclosures 
Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 ·Related I'arty Disclosures· ate as under: 
a) List of Rchtled I'arties 
(i) lIolding (on.pany 

Ircon InternaliOllal l.imited 
(i i) Key Management Pusonnel (KMI') 

Non Exc(uti ... t Directors 
Name I)nil:n~liun 

ShTi Masood Ahmad (w.c f. 06lh January. 2022) Di rector from lrcon 
Shei Mugunllian BoJu (w e f 06tll J!\IlU3f)", 2022) Director from lrcon 
Shri Devendra Kumar Sharma (w e f 10th October 2022 10} 1st January 2024) DircclOT from lroon 
SlIn ManoJ Kumar (w.e.f. 14th ()(:tobl'r 2012) Director frorn Ircon 
Shri Yogesh Kumar MisflI (w e f 01 5t Febuary 2024) D,rector from lrcon 
Remuncrauon to Key Man~gement Personnel. Company had Part-ume and Non Exe<:u tllle DlTectors during Ihe financial ycar 2023-24 and 2022-23 (06.01 .2022 
to 31 ,OJ.2023), nominated on the Board by the Holding Company, do not draw any remuneration from the Company. No siuing fee is paid to Part-lime and Non 
Executive Directors. 

b) Tran~aclions with other rela ted parties art as follows' 

For the IJ-eriod from 06th 

Nature of transaction Name of related I!arty 
Nature of For the year ended Jist January 2022 (Date of 

rehuionship March 2024 incoqlOrat ion) to 31st 
March 2023 

I) Reimbursement expenses 60.39 6.35 
2) Rent Expense (inclusive ofGST) J.l l 3.51 
3) Investment in Equity Shares 5 1.50 5.00 
4) Works Cont!'act Ircoo International 

Holding Company 
43.83149 2,584.99 

5) Loon from holding company- Deemed Equity Limited 4,469.00 672.50 
6) Share Issue expenses 1999 · 
6) Advance gi ... en 2. 162.96 · 

, ) Outsta ndin\!. balances with tht relaled partin lire as follows: 
Nalure of transaction Name of rela ted party Nature of Asat As al 

relationship JIsI Mart h, 2024 Jist Ma~h, 2023 

Balance Payable as on reponing date 12.606.87 2,358.28 
Equity Share Capital (Including Deemed Equity Ireon International 

Hnldins rn"'l'~ny 5.661.50 677.50 
equi! ) LinHted 

. Advances balance 2,16296 · 
d) Terms and conditions of tra liSllc tions .. ·jth rel~ted parlies 
(i) Transactions wilh related panies arc made on temls equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. 
<iiI Outstanding balances of re1~ted parties at the reporting dale arc unsecured and sctllemenl occurs through banking tran~actions. These ballulees arc interest free. 

~'" . 'j ..... ' 
- , JHl .'"> ". ~redr.e~ 
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Treon IIhoj Morbe Ex pressway Limiled 
C IN:- U4520JDL2022GOIJ92 148 

Notu to financial st .t~ments for the ynr tnded Jist Mar<:h 2024 
(All amounts in Ind'an Rupees Lakhs unless ocher.<'S(: swed) 

21 Earnings per shMr~ (EPS) 

l)isdosure as per Ind AS JJ 'Ea rnings per sha re' 

(a) Basic EPS is calculated by dividing th~ profit for the year anf1bUlabl~ to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the 
period. 

(b) Diluted Ers is calculated by dividing the profit for the pt:riod attnbutable to the equi ty holders a fter considering the effect of dilution by weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus tile weighted average !lumber of equity shares that would be issued on con,~rsion of all the dilutive 
potent ial equity shares into equ ity shares . 

) Bas ic and di luted earnin!.!s Icr share (in R$,) 

Partic ulars Note For the yellf ended Jist For Ihe period from 06th 
Mar<:h 2024 JlInua l')' 1022 (Date of 

incorponll io n) 10 Jist 
,\brt h 2023 

Profit attributable to Equity holders (Rs. in lakhs) (ii) 1,09 1.48 (0. 12) 
No.of equity shares 39,75.8 19 ,67 50.000.00 
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic and Diluted Ers (In NI (iii) 39,75,8 19.67 50.000.00 
Earnmgs per share (Basic) 27.45 (0.24) 
Earnings per share (Diluted) 27.45 (0.24 ) . 
Face value per share 10,00 10.00 

;) I'rolit attribu table 10 ~quily sharebold~rs (used lIS numerator) (Rs. inlakhs) 

(iii 

Pa rticula rs For Ihe year ended Jist For Ihc period (rom 06th 
Man:h 2024 J a null ry 2022 (Dat~ of 

incorporll iionlio 31st 
Murch 2023 

Profit for the yea r as per Statement of Profit and Loss 1,091.48 (0.12) 
Profit attributable to EQuitv holders oftbe COllmanv used for eornpulinJl. EPS 1.091.48 (0. 12) 

) \V~ieht~d a nl"ll!!.~ number of equilV sha rn (used us dcnominllto r) (Nos.) 
Pa rticula rs For the )'ear ended J ist For Ihe period from (){jlh 

March 2024 January 2022 (Date of 
ineoql<lration) 10 J lsi 

~h.rch 2023 

Open ing balance of issued equity shares 50,000.00 -
Equity shares issued during the year 5 I ,50.000.00 50,000.00 
Equity shares outstanding as on date 52,00,000,00 50,000,00 
\VeightNt 9v~r ... g~ num" ... r of ~'t";ly .t".rn rur comt.uting n ... k iii'S 39,75,8 19.67 50.000.00 
Ililul ion Effect: 

Add: Weighted average numbers of potential equity shares ou tstanding during the year - -
Weighled anrage number ohquity Shll TU for,ctlmpuling Diluted EPS 39.15,819.67 50.000 00 
NOle. WeIghted ava-age numb.er of equny sha,..!s IS the number of shares outslllndrng from the date of rncorporntlon adjusted by the number of eqUIty shares 

- issued during the period multipl ied by the time' wcighting factor. 111e tnne weighting factor is the numhcr of days for which the specific shilres arc outstanding 
as proportion of total number of days during the period. 
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I reon Bhoj Morbe Etprtssway Limiled 
C IN: - U45203DUOUG01392 148 

NOles 10 r.tI , n ci~ 1 s tat ~mtnU for til t )'u r t rlded 3 1$t " b rcb 2024 
(Alt *"">UnU ,n Ind ..... Rupee, J..».h, ...... es. DIhetw> .. .wed) 

22 Imp~irmtnt of A~tt$ 

During the penod, Company has carried out as5I!SSll1em on impa 'rment of IndiVidual assets by working out the recoverable amounl based on lower of the net realizable value and 
carrying COSI in terms of [nd AS 36. "Impairment of Assets" ooufiM under section 13J of the eomp'UI'es Act. 201) read wnll Rule 3 of I'" Companies (Indian Account"" Standards) 
Rules. 2015 and Companies (Indian IICWUnting $tandards) Ameodmenl Rules 2016. Aocord",gly. impalllllenlioss of Nil (PrevIOus penod Nil) bas been provldM for· 

1:3 Pro\·lsion. Cooti.gcocln ~ nd CommilmcntJ 
(I) Pro\' isiollS 

No provisions provided 'dunng the year as per 100 AS 31 'Provlsioll$. Conlingcnt Liabilities and COlllingent Assets' 

(b) Conlingent liabililib 

No ClaIms agamSl the Company acknowledge:! as debts as 00 the reporting date as per lnd AS 37 'Provisioos. Contingent Ltablhues and Contingent M5els·. 

(el Conlingent I$~~ IS 

No daims 1M faY()Ul 01 the company accounted as receIVables as 00 the reporting date as per [nd i\S)7 "Provis,ons. Conllogenl Ltabllines a!1od Contmgent Assets' 

(d) COllOmilmcnts 

Estimated amount ofOOllttaCl$ remaining Iv be executed on cap,tal account (Net of advance) and not provided foc 'S Nil Other CoolmnmenlS M On 31$1 March' 2024 "Rs 
89.95600 lakhs (PrevtnUS pf"no(t Rs 1.29.7SO.83 lakhs) 

24 &gm~n t Reporting 
(i) Gcncnt l In f(lrmation 

Operating se&menls are defined as contl'OOents of an enttrpnse for .... tuth dIscrete financtal mformatioo IS available " 'hlch IS being e''aluated regularly by the ChiefOperallng 
DeciSion Maker (CODM) In decIding how to allocate rewurces and assessing performan« The Iloard of DIre<:I(If'; of the Com""ny IS the Chief Operaling Declsioo Maker 
(CODM). The Company I~ engaged !II the bUSiness of tnfraslruCt ure development in the stale of Maharashtrn and the Chief Operating DecIsion Maker (CODM) rn omtors the 
operating rcsults of the business as II Single segment lienee. the Company has ooly one repormble segment. which IS Development of E.~pressway tnfonnatJOn aboul the 
reportable segemem IS same lIS reflected In lhe financIal 5Qltemenu. Hence. 00 separate segment needs to be disclosed In accordance .... nh the re<jullentenlS of too AS 108. 

(i i) Inf(lrma tion ~b-o'll gtO)!; ntl.hlul inf(lrmMion 

As the Company operates ,n a single gC0Jf3p1\ical ""grrn:nt i e. loola, hen« no separate geogr'J phlcal segment is disclosed 

( ii i) Infonna tion about m3j(lr tMstomt r 
Dunng the year ended March JISI. 2024, Re~e1llJe of Rs 46131 29 Lakhs (Malch 31S! 2023. Rs. 2662 41 lakhs) are dem..:d flom a $tn gle customer, e. NHAI which IS more 
lIum [ ()'>/o oftlle Com""ny's tOlal revenue 

25 Financi3J Risk Management 
"The Company's prlllelpal financIal liablhlles compose trade payables and othef pa)-ables "The rna", purpose of these financial liablhlies is to fiOllnce the Company's operahOIl$. The 
Company'S principal financial assets Include re.::clvables and cash and shon-term deposits. The Company is eXp<:>Sed to the foUowltl il risks from 11$ uSC of financial instruments. Cred it 
nsk . Liquidity risk and Market risl<. This notC presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above nsks. the Company's objec tives. policies and processes for 
measunn, and managing nsll:. 

Risk ManAgement Fr:ullcwork 
The Company's aClivitics make II susceptible to various riSks. The Company has taken adequate measures to add ress such concerns by developing adequate systems and practices. n..: 
Board of Directors has overall responsibihty for the establishment and oversJght oflhe Company's risk management rra~"""". 

a) C r t dit Risk 
Cred it risk is the nsk of financlal ·loss to the Company if II customer 01 (ounterpany 10 a financ181 instrument fails to meet .its contra,tual obligations resu lting in a financiall0:5S 
10 the Company Credit nsk BIISCS pnoclpally from trade re<:elvabh:s. eash and cash eqUlv.l.lenlS " i lh banks and o!her fiOllocr,a1 assets. "The COOlpany'S e~posUJe and credit raungs 
of lIS oounterpanlcs are coollllously momtor<:d by the management. 

Cash and ush cqniva lcnts 
The Company he ld cash and cash equlvafcnts of Rs 458 03 lakhs (3 1 March 2023 Rs. 4.86 laklts). The cash and cash equivalenls arc held in public sector banks with strong 
(Iedit ratings. 

Othu t1 nutia l asstts 
l1-ie other· financial ass.::t5 pllmanly r~late, to the ConstrUCtiOn Asset Receivable under Service Concession AlT1lngernent (SCA). The ~red L t risk aris,ng from these construction 
assets receivable is limiled bi.-<:8 USC the eoumc."art)" IS National Highways Authonty of India (Nl (AI). an autonomous agency of Govcrnmcnt of lOO,a 
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NOles 10 financia l UI I(m( .m for rh r yurend((i JI$I March 2024 
(.'lit amounts In rndlan Rupees Lakh. LUlless odt<fWl>esWod) 

(il " lire 10 crrdil ris k 
r a rticn ln s 

Fin~ncial Assets for which allowlnce is musur~d using life-lim t U lleCled crrdil lo.u RS per s iml.lificd a l'l)ruath 

Tr1ide Receivables 

Cash and Cash Equ" .. lents 
Other Current FinancIa l Assets 

(i i) I'ol>"isloo for UI~lcd <Rdil lo5Se!I 
No impairm~m loss has been recogm$ed dunng the reponong period. 

( iii) Sumonary of loss . 11o .. ·l n« mea.utH! usint s im lified I .... ro~ch: -
Partkul~rs 

IOlle nin g Atlo .. ·an cO!S 
Ilmpalrmcntlo!oS rCl.:ogmsed dunng 
Utlh;eatioo dunng the )·ellr 
Amount wrllten off 

C losi" Allow~nccs 

Dunna the year. the COl11pany has recogm$ed loss allowance of Nil (31S! March. 2023 . Rs. NIl). 

Summa . of change in 1o!>S allo .. ·anca measuRd using urel ill1e f.. II«IW Cndil 1..o»5C!I (LECLJ .• I (03ch 
Particulars 

IO llenin g Allowances 
hmpairmentloss rl:<:ogl1l$ed dunng 
Utilizo.ion dwing the year 

Amoun. wrinen off 
Closin Allnw3nces 

b) Liquidi. y risk 

]1_~lIr_ 1-I 

6.413 95 
45803 

21,953.48 

J I-Mar-lJ 

31 _M ..... 24 

(Rs.. In Lakhs 
J I-!\Iar_ZJ 

-
' .86 

2,662 41 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 
]1-Mlr-2J 

(Rs.. I" Lakhs) 
1 1-1'>Iar-23 

liquidity risk IS the: nsk mat the Company ""II enc:ounl~r difficulty In meeting the.obIl&atlOllS associatw wlIh liS financial liabilities thaI are 5ettlcd by dehvenng c:t5h I)( another 
financ.al ~. The Company's approach to manag.ng hqu)dny is 10 ensure, as far as possIble. that It w,lI h.we $Uff1(:oem liquidity tn meet Its h.l1bilities ","hen they are due, undet" 
both nonnal and $lressed condl1loos. W(!oout incumna unacceptable losses nr riskmg damage to the Company's repUlallon. LlqUldLty position nf the Company is reVII:wcd on a 
regular basis by.he Board nfDirectors and appropriate declslnns are laken acwrdmg to the SItuatIon 

Tbr labtr belnw pro.·ida del ails r fla nling Ihe sign if]Canl fiaan( ialliabililks as a l J1$1 MaNCh 20H " Jisl Man:h 20B 
(a... In Lakhs 

Particulars As al 31st "'ut'h, 2024 
!..fil th an I Yrar 1-2 Years 1 yurs and a l>ove 

BOtTo ... ·mgs - 617.54 12,3111.46 

TrWe f·ay:a.bles 12.225.77 - -
Oth~r financial Liabilities 408.64 - -

(Rs.. In l .akhs 

ParCicn"'rs As al3ls1 i\1a,." h, 20B 

1.a, lhan I Year \ -2 Years 2 yran a nd above 

Borrowings - - -
Trade Pay:a.bles 2,179 19 - -
Other Financial Liabiltues 200.34 - -

t) l\Iarkd (i,k 

Market rIsk IS the fisk that the faIr value of future ash nows of. financial Inslruments will n..,tuate because nf changes in market prIces. Market rIsk comprIses Foreign 
CWTency nsk and Interest rate risk.. TheobJeclh·e of market risk managemwt is to manage and comrol mDrl:~1 risk e.lpclSlJJ"CS within acceptable p.1ramCleN., while opcimising the 
return. Tlle Board of DIf«~ IS responSIble for set!lna up of policies and procedures to manage markel nsks of the Coo)pany 

(il C um:ncy risk 
The Company operates In India only and the functional currency oftheCnmpany is also Indian Rupees. The Company has 00 uansact'(lf1 In currency other than fWlCtional 
cWTencyand .he«fnre. the ComlKlny IS oot e>:posed to forelgn currency nsk. 
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Notes to fin anc ial SUt .. n1fnll for Ih .. )·tar .. ndal J1 s( Marth lOU 
(All -. '" In<han RUj>I!<1 Laklu unle .. othcro. ..... ~) 

(ii ) Inte res t I"Ille risk 

Interest rale risk I~ the risk ltuH lhe ran value or lhe ruture cash nO .... "$ of a financial insuumem will nlJCtualc beca use of changes m market interest rates. Al the reportinjl dale. 
the Company has no in~re51·beanng financial InStruments. 

26 hi r Va lue MeaWKnlen lS 
a) F' . ,. InanC la ,"SI.- men ts b '" 

, 
Particu llll"$ . '" n >IT 

rVT t' L f'VTOC I Amortised Cost 

Finandal A.utu al Amoni •. ~1 C~ I 

(i) Trade Receivables · · 6.473 95 
(ii) Cash Ind eash equivalents · · 45803 
(ii i) Other current financIal assets · · 21,95) 48 

· · 28,885046 

Financial Lial>i li!ies al ,\mo rtized COS I 
(I) iklrrowlngs · · 12,937 00 
(u)Trade Parables · · 12,225.77 

iii) Other finaoclalEiabilllIcs · · 408.64 

· · 25,57 1.41 

Pa rticula rs As al ) 1511\1 ... 1>, 2023 . 
t· VTrt. ~'VTOC I Amortised Cost 

~-inancia1 AJse ts at Amorti7.cd COSI 
(i) Trade ReceIvables · · . 
(iiI Cash and cash. equi~"lI.lents · · .. , 
(II i) Other currenl fi"""",'al assets · · 2.662.4 1 

· · 2,667.27 

n"a"dll l Ulibilities al Amo,·ti/.ed COSI 
( I) BorroWings · · . 
(ii) Tradc l'ayables · · 2.179. 19 
(III) Other financial lIabllllles - - 200.34 

- - 2..)7',53 

b) Fair vM lue h icl"Ilrchy 

Finaocla l assets and finaocial liabi\lties are measUll"<l al fall vallJC in lhese finaoclal statements and are grouped inlO Ihr~ levels or a fair I'lIJtJe hierarchy The tllr~ Leve ls arc 
defined based on \he observab.hly of signi ficant InpUIS 10 lhe measuremenl, as follows. 

<, 

Le, ... 1 I Quoted prices (unadJusled) in lICIi,'c markets for Identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 . Inputs OIlier \han ~1>OIed pnces included Wllhm Le\lel 1 lllal are observable for the asSd or habiEi!)'. elltW:1 dIrectly or indirectly 
Level J Unobservable inpUlS for lhe asset Or hablllly 

Carryin): n lue aud Fair "~Iue of fina ncial ~nclS and lIabilil ies as MI Jhl M arch 2024 
Pankulars Carrying Value Fa ir V. lue 

Ln'e~1 IAo·tl-l 

Financia l , \ S$l:1$ a t A,uo rtiud COSI 
(i) Trade Receivables 6.473 95 · 
(I i) Cash and cash eqUlval~nlS 458 OJ -
(ii i) Oth~r curre nl fin •. "'''~ l ..... " 21.0Sl .411 -

28.8S!I.46 · 
Fina"cia l Li~hilities at Amortized COSI 

(I) BorloWlngs 12,931 00 -
(Ii) Trade Pa)"ables 12.225 77 · 
(III) Oltw:r financial lIablhues 40864 · 

25,571 .41 -

I.e'·cl-J 

- 6,473.95 

- 458.03 
21.953. ·48 

28.885.46 

- 12.93700 

- 12.22S 77 

- 408.64 

- 25,571.41 
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Notes to finanei~ 1 Stalemenls fo r th e yur end ed JISI March 2024 
(All "moon" In Ind,." Rupe« L.khs ""Ie" otherwise stated) 

C~rr!'in r: , ·a lue ud Fai r n loe o f financial UKII a nd li~ bi lil ies al al Jisl ~b n;h 20ll 
Parl icollo rs Ca rryin!; Value 

Financia l Assets ~t A'llortiU<i Cost 

(I) Trade Receivables -
{i iI Cash and cash e:ql.llvak"nts 4.86 
(III) OIke, CUl"Tenl financial assets 2.662.41 

2,667.17 

Financia l L.iabililies Mt ,\nlOrli7.cd COS I 
(I) BorrOWings 
( tI ) Trnde Parables 2.179 19 
(III' Other financIal habilitics 200 J4 

2.379.5J 

Fai r Va lue 
Level· ! w ·d ·2 uvtl-J 

- - -
- - 486 
- - 2.662.41 

- - 2,667.27 

- -
- 2.179 19 

- - 20034 
- - 2,J 79.5.1 

The mnnagemem assessed thai fair value of cash and cash equIvalents. Irade pa}ablcs. and other curr~nt finam:lal assets / hublhllcs apprO.~IIII ate thell carrying amounts largely 
due 10 Ike shon-ternl maturities of these instrumentS. TIte fair value of tlte financIal assets and liabilities is lochlded althe amount at which the instrum<:nt could be e~chang.'([ in 
a currenttraI\S3Cllon Ilel .. "ttn " ·IUing partIes. 

17 Ca pital Management 

Thc Company's objective to manage liS capita l in a manncr to ens ure and ~afeguard Ihell abi lity to continue a~ a gomg concern.so that the Company can continue to provide mU!mUm 
returns to sharelwlders and benefit to other stakelwlders and also to maintain an approprt3te capita! ~tructtlre of debt and equity "The capital structure o f the company is based 00 

managemcnl'S Joogement of ItS It13tegK: and day-to-day needs wnh a focus on total eqUity SO as to maintain In",,"Slor. credliors and maact cunfidence. The management and the Board 
ofo,rcctors monitor the return 00 capital "The Comp3l1y lI1IIy take appropriate sleps In ordel 10 maIntain, or ifneeessary adjUSt, its capita1 5IIUClure. 

Further. the Company manages its capLtal structure to make adjustments in light of changes in economic COnditions and the r~'quirc,"ents orthe ronancial covenants. 

!8 Rn·enue 

A. Ll i.uGGI·f"g8 tiol1 of Kcvcnlle 

Sel out below 15 the di saggregation of the com panys revenue from contracts with customers into operattng segment and type ofproduci or serviccs. 

Ty~or 
Fo r Ihe ·ur e .... ed JI$I Ma rTh 2024 

1'rotluct or 
Re,·elloe IS Il<r Ind AS 115 M eth Od for measurin g Il<rfo rmancc 

Other Re'·Cllue TOI .. 1 as per St ~ t cilleni 

Sl/nices 
oblil:~lion 

or !'roril and Loss 

'" ut Melhod Out lui Method 
H, ~ 46.331 29 46.331.29 - - 46.33129 
T Ola l 46,lJ 1.19 46,J J1.29 - - 46,3J1.29 

The revenue of R.s 46331 .29 Lakhs is r~"(:ognised over a period oftimc. 

fo r t he r ind from 06lh Janua · 2022 Date of incor nllon toJ lstM ... c h 2021 
T ype of Rn ·caucas ~r Iud AS 115 Met~od fo r measuring pcrformln~ 

Product or obligallon 
Other R(:\·fDUC Total as p<'r Statemenl 

Se,,·ices of I'rofil a nd Lo~5 
Inlllli Method Out llUl Method , , ~, - -, .. - - •• 00 • • '11 

Total 1 662.41 2,662.-1 1 - - 2,602.41 

Thc revenue of Rs 2662.41 Lakhs is recognised over a penod of lime. 

8. C"nlr"l1 ~t ballonces 
I'a rl ic u lars "''' "' '' JIsI Marc:h.201-l Jist Ma nA, 20B 

Contract Assets N()I.e42) 21,62J.54 2.66241 
Contracl habl it 2.162.96 -

i) Cootract Assels arc recognised over the pertod in which Krvites are.perfornled to represent the Company·s nght to ronsidmuion In ~cllangc for goods or services transferred to 
the CLrSlOmtf !t includes balances due from CUSIOmtf"$1irtder COflSIrucllOO contractS ihal anse ",hen the Company receives payments from customers as pcr terms of the contracts 
Iwwever the revenue 15 recOgnised over the period under inpul melhod Any amount prevlou>ly recogntsed as a contract IlSSCt 15 reclassll,ed to trade receivables on saiisfaclioo of 
the condition attachc<ll ;: future service which is necessary 10 achieve Ike billing milcstone 
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No tes to fj ll antia l s ta lrmf tlts for the yu r fllded Jis t ~Ia~h 2024 
(,,11 __ (II Ind .... Rue<!$1Ahs WlIessOlhtrwt!e Slatrd! 

net I I I ill 
" 'hc:reas mils for workdooc: are centfied based 01'1 cootraet condmon. ~ IS no redassificallQII from WlWl1ed revenue 10 I1ade receivables dunng \he penod 

Ii) Cont ract liabilities relaling 10 construcllon contraclS are balances due to customus. t~ arts.: " 'hen a particular mileslone payment exceeds \he revenue recogm$o:d to date 
under the: input method and advance receI ved in Iong .term cOOSlIUCtlOn 00IlIraC1$ The amount of Advance recel-m;i gel$ adJuskd over \he construcllon period 3$ and ... ·hen 
m~"oicing is made to the cu.stomer. 

Pa rlku l,, " " .. , As a' 
3 1st M.,." h . 2024 J IU :\Ia~h. 20ll 

Contract liabilitIes at the Beginning of the year · 
Contmcl liabilities at the end Orthe year 2.162.96 

Ntl ;IIcrease! dec ruse 2,162.% · 

Co ~'Oll ' belo .. ·!s th e amoun t o f re' -en ue rtl:ot.n i<td fl'(lm: 
I'.rticu lan A. at A. Mt 

JI<I Much. 2014 J ist i\ l a~h. 2023 

!\mount included in CO!ltract hawliues althe beglnmng of the penod . · 
Performance obh~tlOn satisfied In prevIous PC"lod · 

I). Cos t to ob ta lll the co nlnet 

The Company has 001 'ncwred any Incremental (051$ of obtaining contracls With a c~tomel and therefore. ~ m:ogm$o:d an assel for such costs. 

E. Transaction p rice a lloca tetlt o the rtmMi nin~ poerlonnance obl iga tions 
The transaCilon prle<: for remaining ,.eiformance obligations shall be received over the contract ,.enod in propon'on of the work ,.e rfonned/~rvices provided by the Company . 

.. , It ti , .. 
I"''' " " Mm " "'" 

" OB' 

I 

I 
'OTt>e amount disclosed ahoyt docs ~ mclude vanable cOIISldcrauon whICh IS constrained. 

29 ~n'icC' Con cc:ssio<1 Ar ra <t geme <t u 
DIsclosure pursuant to Appendix 0 oflnd AS liS "Service Concession Ammgements' IS PS under' 

3) IXsoc ril!tion o f the . rnlngtm~nt 

freon BooJ Morbe Expressway Llmlled (IrconBMEl). a ... ·hnUy_"""N/d c " bslthary of Irc_ In_~1 ... ,,,,t Li""t..d has boocn io>c<><p<><Gl<:d .... It. $""", .. 1 f'...-pwo< Vd .... Ic"II JG"u,,,y 00. 
2022. pursuant to I conditions 3$ 5tlpulated in l:c1ter of Award issued by National Hlgh ... 'ay Autooflty of India (N l tA I) irI;on Bhoj Morbc Expressway LImited (lroonHMEL) has 
entered III to servIce concession armngement on UtI! February 2022 with National l['lIhway aUlhority of India (NlIAf) in terms of which NHAI (Authority) has aUlhorised lhe 
company to carry the business of ConstruchOO of Eight Uine ac«ss controlled E.~pressway from Km 69 800 to Km 19.183 (desipl length 9 983 kill) from BboJ to Morbe &<:lIon 
SPUR of Vadodam Mumbai Expressway(hercinafter called the 'Vadodam Mumbai Expo-e55way) In the State of Mabarashtra utlder Bhannmala l'ariyojana (Phase II-Package XVII) by 
Eight lalling thereof (the """oJect") on Hybnd Annuity bam . ... "htth shall be partly financed by the CO~lOna"e who shall rttO''eI" 11$ illvcstmellt and COSIS through paymem 10 be 

made by the aUlttOnty, III accordance with the terms and condItions set in the concession agreement 

b) S ignir.c:ant terms of the arrangcmea l 
I) Pellod of the Con«sstOn : 15 Years from COOlrnereial OpemtiOl'l Dale (COD). 
II) Construction Pertod 9 10 days from Appointed Date i e. from 19.01,2023 
III) Payment Terms Bid Project Cost (APC) '" R5. 1436 crore, "40010 of the B!'C. I'djusled for the Prie<: lnde)!. Multiple. shall be due and payable in 10 equal installmenl$ of 40/. ea<:h dunng 

the ConSt ructIon penod and remaining BPC. I'dJIISled for the Pne<: lndu Multiple. shall be due and pa)'able In 30 bUlnnual installments commencing from the 180th day of roo 
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Not~ to financial statemenlS for t be yea r ended Jist Man:b lil2-1 
rAlI amouno. ,n Ind.., Rupee. LK!I. m1kuool=wlse !laudl 

In l~rm5 of 1M said agree ment IreonBM EL has no righllO usc lhe specified asselS and has an obl'gat,on 10 complele conSlruction of the project and to keep lhoc project assets in proper 
working condlti<:on including all proJeets assets whose lives have expired. 

AI the end of the ,~ion penod. lhe assetS "111 be transferred back 10 Nallonal Highway Authonl)' of India (NHAI). 

In use ofmalenal breach in terms of agrcemenllhe NI'!AI and lroonBMEl have IIght!Q lefTmnale the ag.--ee1TlC1l1 If they are not able to curt lhe evenl of default In accordance wllh 
$tICh agreement. 

~) Financial assets (Service ~on~ession r«rivables) 

'1lIe company h.u recognized =,vable of Rs.. 116!J.S-l Lakhs (Rs.. 2662.41 Lakhs) under service concession arrangement and 500"11 under 0100 Fmanc,al current Assets .. -h,eh ,t 
w1l1 receIVe as per tmns of the connaet based 00 the complet'on of milestone. as on 3151. M~h 2024 and Jist March 2023 respectively 

DiKlosun:: in tern's of Al,pendix I) of Ind AS 115: 

In terms of the disclosure rC([u]fOO in AppendiX D in Ind AS -115 Revenue from CUStOmers, as noll~OO in the coml»nies (Indian Accounling Standard) rules 2016. the amount 
considered in the financia l statemcnu up 10 the balance $beet dale are as follow~. 

r~rticu l~rs 
For Ihe yur tndctl .Hsi Jan"Mr)" 2022 (D~le or 

i\1~reh 202-1 ineorp(l .... tion) 10 llsl 

Contract Revenue Recognized 46,331 29 2662.41 
Aggregate amounl of cost incurred 44,875.75 266246 
Amount of advance received from ClitTU - -
Amount of retenuOll by Client - -
Profit/( Loss) reeogni$td during the ~riod for exchanS" of CQnSIfUCUon servia for B financial asset 1.455.54 (OOS) 
Gross amount due from Client for Contract Works 2 1.623.54 2.662 41 

JU I .. uses 
a) Compan y a,. lcsscc 

(i) The Company has no leas,ng arrangement wh,ch are non-cancellable ,n natur ... Acwrd'naly, no nght ofUSl: assets and lease hab'hlles have been re<:O&rused by the Company 

(ii) l1Ie Company has taken Office on lease with lease terms of 11 months Of less. ll1e Company appli es the 'soon-term lease' recogrution exemptions for such leases. 

The ~ II o oWln fi are t oe amounts re-<:ogru5'<l on SI~lcment 01 pro It and loss 
ral"lic ul~,"" 

" nse r~lntin 10 sbort-term lenses Refer Note 18) 

II) Company MS a l4ror 

b) 

" 

Company has no leasing arrangement as B lessor. 

" 
I amount 

Priocipal amount due \0 moao Mnd small enterprlJCS 
Internt due on above 

10 any 

amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of s.e.:II0n 16 (If the MSMED Act 2006 along with the om""",, 0''',,1 
I made to the suppl'er beyond the appoillted day during each accounting year 

amount of interest due and payable for tho: period of <!clay on making paYlTIenl (which have been pa,d but 
1"< ,,,0'"'" day during the:: year) but WIthout ;wIdon, the ,nternl sp«lficd under the MSMED Atl 2006 

remaining unpaId lllhe end of each :occounllng )..,..r 

10 the small 
succeed ing years. until such date wtoen the, 

(or th~ purpose of d,saliowance as, d,d,,,llbl'. ".",,"dI,",,"oo'''1 

J2 Coq lOnte Sc.Kil l fI.~pons;bilily 

For Ihe year e.ded llsl 
I\hffh 102-1 

-

331 

2024 

rile Company IS not covered under seellon 135 of the Companies Act. 2013 arid no CSR e:qlend,ture has been incWTcd dunn& the penod 

for .lIe lle riod from 
06lh JMnw~r}" lOn ( OMit 
of ineo rponotion) to ji St 

I\.lMrch 20B 

3.51 

lOB 
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.... ott'S to fin ancia l 5U temenIS for th~ yur ~ndt'd j i st !lIard ZOH 
1"lIan>oUnt. In Indl.n Rup"'" Lokh. unlu. ",he""" .. ,10'..1) 

JJ l>isdosu~ pursuant 10 netion 186 of Ihe COlnpaa~ .... c l 10 1J: 

Tlrrt: Bre no loans gm:n, inveslmenlS made and guaranll:l: ''''en b)' the Company d\lflng the year ending J Ist March 2024 &. J i sl March 2023 

J4 OtherSt~tufOry I)isc lo~ u rt' 

n.e MCA VIde I1Otifi,alion dated 24th March 202 L has amended Schedule III 10 the Compames Act. 2013 in rcspe<: t of certa.n d,-sclosurc~ ...-h"h are applicable from lsI April 202L 
The Company has incorpGlllted the changes as pr:r the said amendment in the financ.~1 SlatemenlS and below dISclosures are made In compliance Orthe said amendment 

(i) The Company ha.s no Il1lnsactions wllh companies Slrud: off under section 248 oflhc Companies Act, 20 1) or Secllon S60 of Com panICS Act, 1956 during the financIal }'cnr 
ending J 151 March 2024 and 31st March 20ll. 

(il) The Company has noltraded or invesled m Cryplo Currency or Vmual CurrencydwlR& the financIal year end ing 31s1 March 2024 and 31st March 2QD. 

(ill) The Compnay do not have any Bcnaml property as on) 1st March 2024 and }Ist March 2023, where any Pfocerolng has been initiated or pending agaUlS!. the Company for 
hold'"g any Bcnami property. 

IIV) The Company do not have any prior penod errors '" financial year cndlng on 31st March 2024 and 31st March 2023 to be disclosed se parately In Statement of ,hanges In eqUIty, 

(V) TIr Company !las no casoes of any charges or $3115[acllon ... luch IS )1:1 to be regtS\l:rcd wllh ROC beyond the statlllory penod In the financtal year ending J i st March 2024 and 
)Isl March 2023. 

(VI ) Dunng the financIal )"car 202J-24 and 2022-23 (06 0 1 2022 to) I ,03 20ll). the Company have not advanced or loaned or l!\Vesled funds 10 any Other pcrson(s) Or entily(icsl. 
includmg foreIgn enliues ([ntenncdianes) with the understanding thallhe Intt'1lTledlaty shall ' 

(a) directly or indireclly lend or InVcst In other persons or cntlllCS Idcnllfie<\ 11\ any manner whatsoever by OJ on bo:haJfofthe 
company (Ultimate Bcneficiaoes) or 

(b) provide any gual1lntee, sa:unly or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimale BenefiCIaries 

(vii) DUflnli the financial year 2023-22 and 2022-23 (06.01.2022 10 31 .0J 2023). the Company have nOI received any fund front any person(s) or entily(ies), Ineludmg foreign ~n titi es 

(Funding Party) with lhe UnderstandIng (whethl:r r«orded In wTlllng or othe rwi sc) thallhe Company shall 

(a) dlfectly or ind,r«lly lend or InveS!. in other persons or enu ucs ldenllfied 11\ any manner whatSQever by or on bebalfofthc 
funding Party (Ulumate Bcne[ICUIfles) or 

(b) provide any SltatMtee, sa:urity or the like on behalf of tile Ulttmate IkndiClanes. 

(VIIi) Thc Company has not granted any loo ns and advanccs in the nature of loans to promoter!. directors, KMI' and other relaled part ies in the ~nancia l )'ear endIng 3 1s1 March 2024 
and 3 1s1 March 2023 

(ix) l1Ie Company does 1101 have any immovable propert'e$ as al 3 lSI March 2024 and Jbt Marth 202J 
(x) l1Ie Company has 1101 been declared as "'11fu1 defaulter by all)' bank or financial inslllullon or govemment or any government authoTlly In the financIal )'tar 2023-24 and 2022-

23 (06.01 .2022 to 3 1 03.2023) 
(xi ) Company is not required 10 submit statcment of cu rrent asscts wnh til<: b3nk alld therefore reconcllalion of the statement filed by the company wll h hank and tile books of 

.1<:counts is not appli,able. 

(Xli) The Company does ~ have any tmnsacllOns In financial year 202J-24 and 2022-23 (06.01.2022 to}1 0) 2(23), where lhe company has ~ used the bomJwings flom banks 
and finaneiaL InstitUtions for the speclroc plIfp<l5e for ,,·hoch n was taken Blthe balance sheet date. 

(xiii) l1Ie Company ha.ve not entered into any scheme(s) ofarrangemcnts durlnS the year ending 31st March 2024 and 31S! March 2023. 
(xiv) The C0!11pany has nOI entered in any tl1lnsaclion nol recorded in the books of a~collnu that has been surrendered or dls(iosed as income dutlng lhe )'ear in the ta.~ asscs.sments 

under the Income To.-; Act, 1961 (511Ch as search or surveyor any other relevanl prOVISIOns of the Income Ta.~ Act, 196n 

(xv) Company !las 1101 n:ccl'"td all)' granlS and donations dunng the year ending JIS!. Ma"h 2024 and 31st March 2023 

(XVI) The Company docs not ha~ any Caplt.illl Won- I ... Progres!;, In,~mcnt Propeny, IntanlJible Assets and Inlangible Aisets undet" Qo! '"tlopmcnt as .11 J i st March, 2024 and J Ist 
March, 2023. Dunng the year 2023-24 and 2022-23 (06 0 1 2022 10 3 I 0},2023). the company has not revalued any of its Property, planl and equipment 

(xvii) The fo ll owing accounting ratios are diSC losed 

Numfnlor l>ntomi nalOr " larch JI, 2024 t\bn:h J l. lOlJ Ok ch~ngc R~~',~:::;;~' m.~ 

I~ 
, , 1 

b) i ""OD'" 1 ""'<""J I " 0.00 

I ,) 1 '"::"." ~" •• '" 0.00 '00.00% 
.,i. Net Pfofit after taJlcs " , 

Noo-t:llsh operating ,. 1 
c.~p'mses Repa)'mCnIS 

I" N~ ' " . A~'~' "'"'" 029 000 ' 0000% 
Prererence Dwidend 

As lhe prevIous ycar , i , figures are for tilt pe riod 

1 ' ) :~:, . i' "",00,"' · G.~ A "ro,. T.d, '" 000 100.00% fr?~.06th January 2022 to 
cr"',, ~I~ , J Lsi March 2022, railOS 

.{ 
" 
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Ireon Bhoj l\'Iorbe EXllrrSSWIlY Linlilrd 
C IN:- U4520JI)L20ZZGO ll92 148 

NOles 10 fin anCia l statements for the yur cnded Ji lt March 2024 
jAn""""",,, In Ind,.., R~ t.aklu unIe!.s othtfwIK stal¢dl 

g) Trade payable turoover Ne1 cred,! purchases " A vemgc Trade 
rallO Gross credit purchases- Payables 

purd>ast return 

h) Net capnaltumo,·er .-aIlO Net Sales - TOtal sales- Workmg eapital -
sales return Current asSCiS -

Current liabIlities 

I) Net profit .-atlO Net Profit Ne1 Sales '" Total 
sales- sales return 

j) RC1um on capital Earnings before interest Capital Employed " 
employed and taxes TangI ble Net Worth 

+ TOIal ~bt + 

k) Rctun on in,-wmem Income gmer1lted from In'~t 

Investments (Finantt 
Income) 

)5 Rece nt jlronO;lUneemenl 

6.09 119 41 3.03% comparison with current 
year docs not provlde!ile 

appropnate result. 

2.36 )93 -39.95% 
Therefore reason for 

change IS nol provIded 

002 000 \00 00".4 

0.25 000 10000% 

0.00 000 N.A 

Ministry of Corporate Affatrs (-MCA··) notifies new Slandarw or IUTlC'ndments to the uisllng SIalldards under Compames (IndIan Account,"g Standards) Rules as ISSued from time to 
time on Mnrch ll ,2023, MCA amended the Companoes (indIan Acrounhng Standards) Amendment Rules,2023 as below: 
Ind AS 1- P~nt.tio" of Fin~ncia l Statements -This amendment requires lhe cntil1eS 10 dIsclose lhelr malenal account ing polICIes rather lhan Iheir significant acCOUnllng policies. 
The effeclive dale for adoptIon of (his amendment is an annual periods i)eginning on or aller April !. 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the Lmpact of the 
amendmenl is inSIgnificant In tile Siandalone financIal statC~l\t5. 

Ind AS 8- AttoUal ,ng Polic~ C ha ng.-s in AccQuntin!: Es timJtes aad Error - ThLS lUTlC'oomenl has Introduced a definluon of ·accounung estimates· and tncluded amendments to 
Ind AS 8 to help enllties dlsungulsh changes In accounting pohcles from changes In accounting esllmates. "The effccll~ date for adoption of this amendment is annual penoos 
beginmng on or after Aprtl 1,2023 T1Ie Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial stalemenlS. 
Ind AS 12 - Inrome Tn"" _ ThIS amend ment has fIlI.rrowed the scope of the initial recognlllOn exempllon so that is does not apply 10 trarua>:tions tllat give nst to equal and offselling 
temporary differences. The effecll~ dale for ado~lon oflhis amo:ndment IS annual penodS beginning on or after Apoll . 2023. "The Company has tVlIlualed the amendment and there 1$ 

no Impact on tts standalone fiflll.J1Clal stat~lll 

J6 Co,·id -19 I>isdosure 
"The Company has consIdered the po$Sible effects lhat may result from Coltld-19 in the preparalion of liS financial results Ineludlng the recoverabiht)· of carrying amounts of financial 
and non-financial assets. III develop Lng the assumptions relntlng 10 til<:. poSSIble future uncertaintIes In the global economic condItions because ofCovld-19, the Company has used 
internal and external ·sources of ",fonllation and e~pects that the carrylnil amounl of the assets .... ill be recovered The actual tmpact of tlus global health pandemic may be different 
from that .... hlch has been eslimated. as the Covld- 19 SituatIOn evol'"e5 ,n lr"llla and globally_ H~r. lhe Company will contmve to closely mQrutor any material changes to fulure 
economic condillons 

37 OIlier d isc los ,,~ 

(i) 11te Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway limlled was trlCOfJlOf3ted on 06th January 2022 as a ..... holly owned Stlbz,,,bary oflrcoo lnlcmauooallcmtted. 
(ii) The company lias entered IntO loan agreement for Rs. &23 19 ClOre to finance the prOject from Bank of Baroda 00 }I 08 2012. ho"'"e ' ·er, tile Company lias not availed the 

sanctio~ credL\ facility for the period from 06th January 2022 10 31St Ma rch 202l . 
NltAI has noted the FinancIal Closure on)O 08.2022 and tile Compnay lias received ·Appomled Date· i.e. 19.01 2023. 

(iill There is no change If' che authonsed and tssued share caplul of the Company dunl\i tile year. I~ov.·e'<cr. tile Promoter Company. Ircon Inlernational umlted in its 285tll Board 
M«Ijll& held on 6th Apnl, .wB. lias approved the modlficalion of cap.tal suuelure of the Company to Increase the el(UI!y capual oonlnbuuon by Rs.20.58 crore and reduce the 
Quasi-EQuLlY (IntereSI Free lA3nrWl lh equivalent amOUnt LIS per Lender Banks·s Sancnoned 1~'1m. Thus. there WIll be no addLllonal financlallmplicauoo on Promoter Company 
Accordi ngl)'. the company Will ta~c ncccu3.ry action tQ UlCrcasc the authorised sha re capilal to enable the company to "lCr~a~ Its paid up share capItal as per Lender Banks'S 
Sanctioned lerm 

(iv) "The Company has a system of obIaimng pertod.c confirmauon of balances from banb and OIlier panics. So far as trade/other payables and loans and advances are concerned, 
the balance confinnatiQn lellers were senl to the panies. Balances of ·some of the Trade ReceIvables, Other Assets, Trade and Other Payables are subject to 
confirmations/reconciliations and consequcntial adjustment. if an)' ReconciliatIons are carried out on on-going !>as.s. However, management d~ not expecl to h:tve any 
material financIal impact of such pending COOfinnallOrlS I re.:oocl"aIlOrlS. 

(v) ' In lhe'opinion·of the rtdnagement. the "slUt! of as'iCU on realisatIon m the ordinary course of busIness. will not be less tllan the ,-alve Pt IIohich these are staled 111 the Bala~ 
Shc.:1. 

(vi) Fi ures rounded offlo til<:. nearest ru es m l..akh. 

~' ",,", E,,," ... , c;."" 

i}irt("lor 
(Dl N: _085170lJ\ 

c&~;:::' 
s .. j.,. ..... 
00 
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DETAILED WORKINGS FOR BOOKING OF TURNOVER IN ITEM RATE CONTRACT PROJECTS FOR FY 2023-24 Annexure-6 

Sr. No. Particulars Rs.in lakhs Rs.ln lakhs 
Upto the year Up to Dale as on 

ended on 31 .032024 
31 .03.2023 

A) Name of Ihe Project : BHOJ MORBE EXPRESSWAY PROJECT IBMEL IBMEL 

9) Date of start of work 19-01 -2023 19-01-2023 

C) Likely date of completion of the project Scheduled : 910 days from 
17-07-2025 17-07-2025 

Start 

1 Latest Estimate of the Project Value with Ctient (Contract value) 
1,78,591.00 (including escalationlvariation) 

2 latest Estimated cost to complete Ihe project (including 
1.73,275.00 

escalation/variation) as per Note 1 D. 

3(1 -2) Latest Estimated PBT 5,316.00 

, Turnover booked upto 31 .03.2023 2,662.41 

5 Updated Tolal expenditure/cost(including Materials Purchased) 47,535.34 

6 Material in hand (closing stock of material) -
7 Contract WIP al ~st (uncertified ) -

8= (5-6-7) Updated cost incurred 10 dale (te. Upto 31 .03.2024) on certified wOO 47,535.34 

9=(812",00} Percentage of cost incurred to date to estimated cost 10 complete the project 27.43% 

1.10=(1 "9) Revenue 10 be recognised as per % age complel ion method upto date 31 .03.2024 48,993.70 

11:(10-4) Revenue 10 be booked as on 31 .03.2024 of FY 2023-2~ - 46.331.29 

12 Bill certified by Ihe clienl upto 31 .03.2024 27,370.1 6 

Either 

If Bill Certified Is less than Revenue as per percentage of completion · 

13={10-12) Construction cost incurred in terms of SeA - Current - 18.961 .13 

OR 

If Bill Certified if> more than Revenue as per percentage of completion 
. 

14=(12-10) !Advance work receipts 
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11'con Bhoj IVlorbe Expressway Ltd. 
Notes to finaucial statements f(w the year ended Man.:h :31, 2024 

1. Corporate Information 

Ircon Bhoj Morbe E>q)resway Limited (the "Company") is domiciled and incorporated in India and is a 
wholly owned subsidiary of lrcon International Limited (lRCON), public sector construction company 
domiciled in india. The Company (CIN U45203DL2022GOI392148) is incorporated under the provisions 
of th e Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India. 

The Company came into eXiS Ll::!l ce when IRCON was awarded the work of upgradation & construction of 
Eight lane acces controlled expressway from 6<) .800 to KM 79.783(Bhoj to Morbe Section-Spur of Vacl odara 
Mumbai Expressway) In the state of Maharashtra on Hybrid Annuity mode under Bharatmala Pariyujna 
(Phase II Pacakage XVII) In pursuant to the provision of request for Proposal", the selected bidder 'IRCON' 
has formed a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Ltd. as wholly owned 
subsidiary of lRCON, incorporated on 06.01.2022. Accordingly, the Company has signed the Concession 
Agreement with NHAl on 18.()~ ~022 for the project value amounting to Rs 1436 Crore. The Concession 
period is 15 years from CUllllllCl"cial Operation Date (COD) and Construction period is 910 days fronl 
Appointed Date. The registered uffice of the company is located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi-
110017· 

The financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their meeting held 
on 10.05.2024 

2. Material accounting policies 

2.1. Basis of prcparation of Fin~'llcial Statcrllcnts 

1. Statcnlcnt of cOInpliance 

The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared on going concern basis following 
accrual system of accounting and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, 
illcludillg the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 ofthe Companies Act, ~()]3 
read together with Ru le 3 of rill' CUJl1panies (Indian Accounting Standards) IZu les, 2015 (as amcnded from 
time to tim e) anc! presentatioll t"l:: ljuircmcnts 01' Division 11 of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Incl 
1\S compliant Schedule Ill), as dpplicable to the stanclalone financia l statements. 

11. Basis of 111CaSUrCIllent 

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the 
following assets and liabilities \\'hich have been measured at t~lir value: 

HI. Functional and Pl"eSentalion ClllTcncy 

These Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the Company's 
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded 10 the nearest Lakhs up to two decimals except for pe r 
share data, unless otherwise sl~ltl::d. 



53

Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Ltd. 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

., .) Summary of material accounting policies 

,\ SLllllmClr), o/" th e material accounting poli cies applied in th e prepa ration f)/" Ih e finan cictl statements are as 
given below. These accounting policies have bee n applied consistently to all periods presented in the 
finan cial statements. 

~.~.l. Current and non-current classification 

13<lsed Oil the tim e involved betwee n the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and 
Gts h eq ltiv,tlenls , the Company has de term in ed Iwelve months as its ()l'crrll"ing cycle for Ihe purpose of 
cl:t."si i"i c;'11 ion (JI' il s (Isseis and li ,lhilih es (IS current ,1Ilc1lwn-cIIITcnl ill Ih e !';11:I11ce shed. 
i!e le rred tax <Isse is anclliahilities are classified as non-current assets and li 'lhilities. 

~!.~.2. Revenue Recognition 

The Comp<lny derives revenues prim;lrily from the Service Concession /\rrangement compnsll1g th e 
construction and operation & maintenance services pertaining to <In infrastructure (Road) on Hybrid 
Annuity Mode. 

I. Revenue from Sel·vice Concession Arnl11gement 

T!le Comp,l11 Y's conlracLs wilh th e Cus lo ill e rs Cor Ih e co nstruction and nrwralion & m ,linte n,)nce services 
tinder the Se rvice Concession Arrangement (SCA) are accounted for as a single performance obliga tion as 
co ntract is nego tiated as a package with a single commercial objective ,me! involves complex integration 
oC construction and maintenance services. 

l~evenu e is recognised over the time using input lT1ethod (i.e., percentage-of-completion method) ,,.,,hich is 
consistent with the transfer of control to the customer because there is a direct relationship-between the 
Company's effort (i.e ., cost incurred) and the transfer of service to the cltstomer. Under input m ethod, 
co ntract reve nue is recognized as reve nue by reference to th e s tage of completion as at the reporting date. 
The stage of completion is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total 
estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. However, where the Company is not be able to 
reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but the Company expects to recover the 
costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognises revenue only to the extent 
o/" the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure th e outcome of the performance 
obligation . A cumulative catch-up adjustment woule! be recognized in th e period in which the entity is able 
to reasonably measure its progress . Changes to total estimated contract costs, if any, are recognised in the 
pe riod in vvhich they are determin ed as assessed at the contract level. 

Any expected losses on contracts in progress are charged to statement to profit & Loss, in total , in the 
period th e losses are identified. 

Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is allocated to th e performance obligation and is 
adiusted for variable considerations. Variability in the transaction price <lris es primarily clue to liquidated 
cla'mages, price variation clauses, incentive~cli'Mig~,i n law etc. The Company recognize? revenue for 
variable consideration when it is probablf -tl?c;t a si"gnjficant reversal in th e amount cmtl~fl\!e ~reVeJ1Ue 
. ~¥ \ eVi De\h\)\~) ~::;; ~';:~~~-<.\ ~ ~t ~ -=-! I\) ~ 

--t:~ ~/"l ro~ 
CJ;s ,,<0'1 0 ;:);< ~'y 

QI-In •. , '_r"~o/ 0&, .... 0 
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Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Ltd, 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024 

recognized will not occur. The company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable 
consideration using most likely amount method. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied 
performance obligation are recognised as revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the 
transaction price changes. 

Contract balances 

Contract assets 
If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays 
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is 
conditional. The portion of the payments retained by the cllstomer until final contract settlement is not 
considered a significant financing component since it is usually intended to provide customer with a form 
of security for Company's remaining performance as specified under the contract, which is consistent with 
the industry practice. 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only 
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is clue). Trade receivable are 
recognised initially at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The 
Company hold the trade receivable with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore 
measure them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less loss allowance. 

Contract liabilities 
If a customer pays consideraLion before the CompallY transfers goods or services to the cllsturner, a 
contract liability is recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). 
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 

Financial Assets Under Service Concession Arrangements (Appendix C to Ind AS 115-
Revenue frol11 Contracts wi.th CustOl11ers) 

The Company recognise a fillancial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to 
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor ("NEAl") for the construction 
services and Operation & lVlailHenance services . 

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortized cost using the 
Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. . 

11. OthC1' income 

Interest income is recognized Llsing Effective Interest rate method. 

All other income is accounted on accrual basis when no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount 
that will be received. 

~.~.:~. llon'owing cost 

Borrowillg costs consist of inLC: I'l::st alld uther costs that th e Curnp,lll,)' incurs in Lonnec Lioll with lh e 
borrowing offuncls and are chargc:d to statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incLll'reci 
except when it meets the criteria for capitalisation as part Q' qualifying assets as per Ind AS 23. 

/~~\':;~ ";:)' am ~ Ai'U',r. ;). , IC~"" q,. ,):" ~OL(J<:.) ,,,,,.\\ 
'0 C> ') rv ~ ,I l P .\\ 
co . • b : <U 0 !? 0 ~ 

~~ l,leVi 0",\'" en r· It.... 7~ J>: ".;: .~( co =? W .~, 
i' ~ ~ 'Z- -~ ,I\; ,::: 

n" .:;r o~ v , n>q . ",';;' 
~;,. ~ "'0: >. '0 Y 

Ql/'tercd P,.Gr;,r:"~ I 1< 0'» 
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Treon 13110.1 lVIorhe Expressway Ltd. 
Notes tofinanei,ll statements for the ye,lr ended March :~1 , 2024 

:!.2-4. Taxes 

T:lX expense compri ses current lflx ,Ind deferred incom e tax . 

!. Cl Il'l'enl' in eo nle Tax 

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed 
in accordance with relevant tax regulations. 

Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss. Manage ment periodically evaluates 
positions taken in the tax returns ""ith respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 
10 interpretation and establis hes provisions where appropriate. 

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legall y enforceable right to offset and 
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

11. Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of 
:Isse ls and liabiliti es and th eir cmrying amounts for fin,lllci,11 repor ting )1mposes at the repo rting date . 

The carrying amollnt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each repo rting date and reduced to the ex tent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the defe rred 
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when. there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax 
assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. 

:.!.2.!). Employee Benefits 

1. Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits sllch as salaries and wages, short term compensfll"ecl absences, and Performance 
Related Pay (PRJ» falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short­
term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of profit 
and loss ill in the period in which th e employee renders the related services. 

11. Post-employment henetits & other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The employees of the Company are on deputation from 1rcon International Limited, Holding Company. 
The post employee benefits & other long te rm employee benefits includes gratuity, provident fund, post­
ret irement medical facility, pension, leave encashment and leave travel concession. 
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lrcon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Ltd. 
Notes to financial statelnents for the yeal" ended March 31,2024 

of fixed c.:ontribution based on iJasic pay and dearness allowam:e for the period of services rendered in the 
Company. 

The companies liability with respect to the long term employee benefit is limited to the extent of fixed 
contribution to be paid to the holding company. Actual settlement of the long term employee liability will 
be the responsibility of holding company. 

The Contractual employees or lll ..: CO ll1pany are not eligible for pos t employee bellt!fils & other lo ng lel'lll 
ern ployee benefi ts. 

!.2.6. Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentati011 in the statement of cash t-!ows, cash and cash eq uivalents includes 
unrestricted cash and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months and less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

~.2.7. Contingent liabilities & contingent assets 

Contingent liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that may but 
probably will not, require all oulilow of resources embodying, economic benefits or the amount of such 
obligation cannot be measured re liably. When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect 
of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made. 

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. 

Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits IS 

probable. 

~.2.8. Leases 

The Company assesses at COlllr~lct inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is,ir the 
contract conveys the right to co ntrol the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for 
consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

Short Tel"ln leases 

The company has elected not tu recog nise ROU <llllilease liabilities for short te rm leases that ha ve a lease 
term of'twelve months or less . Tilt! Lompany recognises lease payments associated "vith these leases as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

~.2.9. Financial 'instruments 



57

Treon Bho.l MOt·he Expressway Ltd. 
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March :~1, 2024 

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 

1. Financial assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 
All financial assets (excluding trade receivables which do not contain a significant financing component , 
being measured at transaction price) are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial asset. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
aeq u is i ti o n offi nan cial assets ca rri ed at fair va lue tlwou gh profi t or loss me expensed in statemen t of profit 
and loss. 

b) Suhsequent measurement 
Su bsequent measurement of financial asset depends on the Company business model for managing the 
asset Clnd the cash ilow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its financial asset as: 

Financial assets at amortised cost 
After initi <1 l meas urement, the filian ci<1l assets that are helcl for collection of contractual cash flows where 
those ci lsh Ilow represent so lely p<1 ymenl s nf princip,ll ,md inl e res l (S l 'P T) on the prin cipal amounl 
0\ !l-s ta ncl i ng a re mcasured ,II a mo rti sed cos l us i ng Ihe cllce ti vc in le res t I' ,I! C (U IZ) method. In leres t inco me 
from th ese financial asse ts is included in other income. 

Impairment of financial assets 
The Company applies the expected credit loss (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss on financial 
assets meas ured at amortised cost, trade receivables, and other contractual rights to receive cash or other 
financial asset. 
For trade receivables and contract assets, th e Compan y follows 's implifi (~d approach' and meas ures th e 
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines 
tllat whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk 
llas not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. 

c) Derecognition offinandal assets 
Th e Com pan y derecog nizes (\ finan cial clsse l when the co ntractual righl-s to th e cashllows from the 
financial asse t expire or it transfers th e fin<1ncial asset, and th e transfer qllalifies for derecognition uncl er 
I nel AS 109. 

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received / receivable is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

I I. Financialliahilities 

a) Initial reCob~lition and measurement 
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and , in the case of borrowings, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs. 

The C()mpar~y's financial liabilities 
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liabilities. 

b) Subsequei'lt measurement 

The measurement offinancialliabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

After initial recognition, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Interest Rate) method . Amortised cost is calculated 
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part 
of the ElR. The Ell<. amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit anclloss. 

c) Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company's Balance Sheet 
when th e obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

:?.2.10. Fair value meaSlll'elnenl 

The company measures financi~t1 instruments at fair value at each reporting period. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured, are disclosed in the financial statements. Such 
assets and liabilities are categorised within the level 3 (Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable) offair value hierarchy. 

The fa ir value of all asset or a /i;d)ility is measured usi ng the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset UJ" liab ility, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest. 

!.2.11. Earnings Per Share 

In determining basic earnings per share; the company considers the net profit attri bu table to eq u i ty 
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted average 
number of shares outstanding du ring th e period. 

In determining diluted earning::; per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential 
equity shares. 

!.2.12. Pl'ior Period Adjustment 

Errors/omissions disc.:overed in th e current yea r relating to prior periods are trea ted as immaterial and 
adjusted during the current ye:ll", if all such ermrs and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0 . .50% of 
total operating revenue as per la st audited financial s tatement of the Company. 

!.2.13. Significant accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of Standalone Financial Statements requires the management to make judgements, 

... 
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<lccollnting estimates and assllmptions that affect the reported amounts or' revenues, expenses, assets,and 
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these rl~Slllnptions and estimates could 
res ul tin 011 tcomes tha t requ ire a material adjus tm en t to th e carryi ng ampUll t of assets or liabil i ties affected 
in future periods. 

This note provides an overview ofthe areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or comp1exity, and 
of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to 
be different than those originally assessed. 

Significant areas of estimation and judgements (lS stated in the respective accounting policies that have 
the most s ignificant effect on the financial statements are as follows: 

I. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables 

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by appropriate 
;lIlow(1nces for estimated irrecoverable clmount are based on ageing of the receivable's balances and 
historical ex periences, Individual trclde receivabl es ilre written off ,-" rhell management deems not be 
coll ectible , 

II. Contingencies 

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against 
the company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on al1 available 
facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably and such obligations 
are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there Cilll be no assurance of the final 
outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is not expected that such contingencies 
will have material effect on its financial position of probability. 

111. Impairment of financial assets 

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected 
loss rates. The company ll ses judgement in making these assumptions <llld selecting the inputs to the 
impairment calculation , based on the company's pas t history, credit ri~k, existing market conditions as 
well ,IS forw,lrd looking estimates at the end of each reportin g period. 

IV. Taxes 

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and 
the amount and timing offuture taxable income. Given the nature ofbusincss differences arising between 
the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate 
future adjustments that will impact the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period 
in which such determination is made. The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
vvill be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required 
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and 
th e level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategi es. 
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v. Revenue recognition 

The company's revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.2.2, is central to how the company 
values the work it has carried out in each financial year. 

These policies require forecasts to be made ofthe outcomes of Contracts, which require, assessments and 
. judgements to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations. 

The Company has incorporated significant judgements over contractual entitlements for long term 
project. The range of potential outcomes could result in a materially positive or negative change to 
underlying profitability and cash t1ow. 

Estimates are also required with respect to the below mentioned aspects ofthe contract: 
Determination of stage of completion 
Estimation of project completion date 
Provisions for foreseeable lose~ 
Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, jncluding claims and variations. 

These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to ret1ect the current best estimates. 
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COMMENTS OT THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GEITERAL OF IITDIA
UI{DER SECTTOL 143161 lbl OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON BHOJ MORBE E(PRESSWAY LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited
for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with t-Ile financia_l reporting

framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the

management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller

and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for

expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act, based

on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed

under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide

their Audit Report dated 15 May 2024.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided

not to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon Bhoj Morbe

Expressway Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 under Section 143 (6)(a) of
the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: New Delhi
Dated:2? .o,6.2o124

Dr. N
Director General of Audit

I

Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA 
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON BHOJ MORBE EXPRESSWAY LIMITED 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 

The preparation of financial statements of Ircon Bhoj Morbe Expressway Limited 

for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting 

framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller 

and Auditor General of India under Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for 

expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the Act, based 

on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed 

under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide 

their Audit Report dated 15 May 2024. 

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided 

not to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of Ircon Bhoj Morbe 

Expressway Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 under Section 143 (6)(a) of 

the Act. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated:2? .06.2024 

For and on the behalf of the 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

I Goswami 
Director General of Audit 

Railway Commercial, New Delhi 
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Registered & Corporate Office: 

C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi -110017, India 
Tel.: +91-11-29565666 | Fax: +91-11-26522000, 26854000 
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